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E X H I B I T S 

A p p l i c a n t 's I d e n t i f i e d A d m i t t e d 

E x h i b i t 1 8 33 
E x h i b i t 2 9 33 
E x h i b i t 3 10 33 

E x h i b i t 4 11 33 
E x h i b i t 5 12 33 
E x h i b i t 6 15 33 

E x h i b i t 7 15 33 
E x h i b i t 8 18 33 
E x h i b i t 9 20 33 

E x h i b i t 10 25 33 
E x h i b i t 11 26 33 
E x h i b i t 12 26 33 

E x h i b i t 13 27 33 
E x h i b i t 14 31 33 
E x h i b i t 15 31 33 

E x h i b i t 16 31 33 

* * * 

Exxon I d e n t i f i e d A d m i t t e d 

E x h i b i t 1 37, 56 60 
E x h i b i t 2 58 60 
E x h i b i t 3 59 60 
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WHEREUPON, the f o l l o w i n g proceedings were had a t 

9:35 a.m.: 

EX/AMINER ASHLEY: This hearing w i l l now come back 

t o order, and the D i v i s i o n c a l l s Case 12,236. 

MR. RAND CARROLL: A p p l i c a t i o n of P r a i r i e Sun, 

Inc. , f o r compulsory pooling, Eddy County, New Mexico. 

EXAMINER ASHLEY: C a l l f o r appearances. 

MR. ERNEST CARROLL: Mr. Examiner, my name i s 

Ernest C a r r o l l of the Losee, Carson, Haas and C a r r o l l law 

f i r m of A r t e s i a , New Mexico, and I am here today on behalf 

of P r a i r i e Sun, Inc., the Applicant i n t h i s matter. 

EXAMINER ASHLEY: A d d i t i o n a l appearances? 

MR. BRUCE: Mr. Examiner, James Bruce of Santa 

Fe, rep r e s e n t i n g Exxon Corporation. I have one witness t o 

be sworn. 

MR. ERNEST CARROLL: Mr. Examiner, I have one 

witness als o , I'm sorry. 

EXAMINER ASHLEY: Okay. Any a d d i t i o n a l 

appearances? 

W i l l the witnesses please r i s e t o be sworn in? 

(Thereupon, the witnesses were sworn.) 

EXAMINER ASHLEY: Before we get s t a r t e d , are 

ther e any motions a t t h i s time? 

MR. BRUCE: Mr. Examiner, I t h i n k my motion w i l l 

r e q u i r e testimony, so I would wai t u n t i l the end of the 
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hearing. 

EXAMINER ASHLEY: Okay. Mr. C a r r o l l ? 

MR. ERNEST CARROLL: Thank you, Mr. Examiner. 

HOYT E. LEE, 

the witness h e r e i n , a f t e r having been f i r s t d uly sworn upon 

h i s oath, was examined and t e s t i f i e d as f o l l o w s : 

DIRECT EXAMINATION 

BY MR. ERNEST CARROLL: 

Q. Mr. Lee, would you s t a t e your f u l l name and 

address f o r the record? 

A. Hoyt E. Lee. I l i v e i n Roswell, New Mexico a t 

3103 Yeso. 

Q. Mr. Lee, what i s your present occupation? 

A. I'm a c o n s u l t i n g engineer and do c o n t r a c t 

engineering and operations f o r various companies i n the 

Permian Basin. 

Q. You have, Mr. Lee, i n the past, had occasion t o 

t e s t i f y before the occasion [ s i c ] w i t h respect t o land 

matters and engineering matters, have you not? 

A. Yes, I have. 

Q. And you have had your testimony presented and 

been accepted i n both the areas of land-management issues 

and engineering issues? 

A. That i s c o r r e c t . 

Q. You are f a m i l i a r w i t h the A p p l i c a t i o n of P r a i r i e 

STEVEN T. BRENNER, CCR 
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Sun t h a t i s now being heard by the Examiner, are you not? 

A. Yes, I am. 

Q. Are you f a m i l i a r w i t h both the land issues t h a t 

w i l l be presented and the engineering issues? 

A. Yes, I am. 

MR. ERNEST CARROLL: Mr. Examiner, I tender Mr. 

Lee as an expert f o r testimony i n t h i s case w i t h respect t o 

both land matters and engineering matters. 

EXAMINER ASHLEY: Mr. Lee i s so q u a l i f i e d . 

MR. ERNEST CARROLL: Thank you, s i r . 

Q. (By Mr. Ernest C a r r o l l ) Would you b r i e f l y 

summarize what P r a i r i e Sun i s seeking an order from the 

Commission f o r ? 

A. P r a i r i e Sun c u r r e n t l y owns the east h a l f of the 

east h a l f of Section 28, Township 2 3 South, Range 2 9 East. 

I t has a wellbore on t h i s lease, the Laguna Grande Number 

1, which was the f i r s t w e l l d r i l l e d i n an e x p l o r a t o r y u n i t 

created by Exxon. The w e l l has changed hands several 

times, however g e o l o g i c a l and engineering s t u d i e s have 

shown t h a t there are some p o t e n t i a l r e s e r v o i r s t o produce 

i n t h a t wellbore. 

P r a i r i e Sun i s requesting compulsory p o o l i n g of 

the west h a l f of the east h a l f i n order t o comprise enough 

acreage t o have the p r o r a t i o n u n i t needed f o r the OCD 

r e g u l a t i o n . 
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Q. P r a i r i e Sun i s t h e r e f o r e seeking t o pool a l l 

formations t h a t produce on a 320-acre basis; i s t h a t 

c o r r e c t ? 

A. That i s c o r r e c t . 

Q. And a t present P r a i r i e Sun owns h a l f of the 

necessary acreage, t h a t being the east h a l f of the east 

h a l f of Section 28? 

A. That i s c o r r e c t . 

Q. And Exxon owns the west h a l f of the east h a l f of 

Section 28; i s t h a t correct? 

A. Yes, s i r , t h a t i s c o r r e c t . 

Q. The e x p l o r a t o r y u n i t t h a t was o r i g i n a l l y created 

and f o r which t h i s e x i s t i n g wellbore was d r i l l e d pursuant 

t o , t h a t e x p l o r a t o r y u n i t has been disbanded; i s t h a t 

c o r r e c t ? 

A. Yes, i t has been disbanded. 

Q. You have prepared c e r t a i n e x h i b i t s f o r 

pr e s e n t a t i o n here, have you not? 

A. I have. 

Q. I would ask you t o t u r n t o E x h i b i t Number 1. 

Would you i d e n t i f y t h a t e x h i b i t f o r the record and then 

p o i n t out the s i g n i f i c a n t p o i n t s on i t f o r the Examiner? 

A. E x h i b i t 1 i s a lease p l a t showing the various 

ownership i n the area. As you can see, i n Section 28, the 

east h a l f , east h a l f shows on the map ownership t o be 

STEVEN T. BRENNER, CCR 
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Paloma Resources. P r a i r i e Sun, I n c . , purchased t h e i r 

i n t e r e s t i n t h a t lease e f f e c t i v e 1-1 of 1999. 

Q. A l l r i g h t . I t also shows the t e m p o r a r i l y 

abandoned w e l l t h a t P r a i r i e Sun seeks t o r e - e n t e r , does i t 

not? 

A. That i s c o r r e c t . 

Q. That i s the wellbore t h a t i s shown i n the east 

h a l f of the east h a l f on t h i s map? 

A. Yes, i t ' s i n U n i t I , located 990 from the east 

l i n e and 13 80 from the south l i n e . 

Q. Would you t u r n t o what has been marked as E x h i b i t 

2? 

A. E x h i b i t 2 i s a land p l a t of Section 28, showing 

the various ownership and the lease number of the two 

f e d e r a l leases encompassed i n Section 28. 

Q. A l l of Section 28, the minerals belong — They're 

f e d e r a l minerals, are they not? 

A. A l l minerals are under f e d e r a l lease. 

Q. The lease t h a t P r a i r i e Sun owns, Federal Lease 

New Mexico 67103, i s t h a t lease j u s t s o l e l y comprised of 

160 acres? 

A. That lease i s s t r i c t l y 160 acres, comprising the 

east h a l f , east h a l f of Section 28. 

Q. The 160 acres belonging t o acreage t h a t you seek 

t o f o r c e - p o o l w i t h P r a i r i e Sun's acreage i s p a r t of a much 

STEVEN T. BRENNER, CCR 
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l a r g e r lease numbered New Mexico 19848; i s t h a t c o r r e c t ? 

A. Yes, I believe the Exxon lease NM-19848 i s a 

1760-acre lease. 

Q. A l l r i g h t . To your i n f o r m a t i o n , t h a t p a r t i c u l a r 

lease i s p r e s e n t l y held by production; i s t h a t c o r r e c t ? 

A. I t i s c u r r e n t l y held by production. 

Q. The P r a i r i e Sun lease i s held by the f a c t t h a t i t 

once was a producing lease; i s t h a t c o r r e c t ? 

A. That's c o r r e c t . That lease was he l d by the u n i t , 

the u n i t disbanded, and there was a small amount of o i l 

t h a t was t e s t e d i n the Delaware p r i o r t o the a c q u i s i t i o n of 

the acreage. However, i t i s c u r r e n t l y not producing and i s 

i n jeopardy of l o s i n g t h a t 160-acre lease i f some s o r t of 

production i s not established. 

Q. And i s t h a t why P r a i r i e Sun i s now seeking t o 

f o r c e pool t h i s acreage, t o t r y t o get produ c t i o n on t h i s 

lease? 

A. Yes, i t i s . 

Q. Would you t u r n t o E x h i b i t Number 3? 

A. E x h i b i t — 

Q. The area — Does t h i s j u s t s t r i c t l y show the 

acreage t h a t you are seeking t o u n i t i z e ? 

A. Yes, i t i s . I t shows the amount of a d d i t i o n a l 

acreage necessary t o create t h i s p r o r a t i o n u n i t . 

Q. At t h i s time, then, there are only two working 
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i n t e r e s t or leasehold i n t e r e s t owners i n the su b j e c t 

acreage sought t o be p u l l e d ; i s t h a t c o r r e c t ? 

A. That i s c o r r e c t , i t ' s Exxon 50 percent and 

P r a i r i e Sun 50 percent. 

Q. A l l r i g h t . We'll deal w i t h t h a t issue again on 

the n o t i c e when we come t o the c e r t i f i c a t e of compliance 

w i t h 12 07. Let's go on. 

The p a r t i c u l a r l o c a t i o n t h a t the Laguna Grande 

Number 1 w e l l was d r i l l e d , t h a t i s not a standard l o c a t i o n , 

i s i t ? 

A. No, i t i s not, i t ' s not a standard l o c a t i o n f o r a 

320-acre prorated gas w e l l . 

Q. Would you discuss the importance of E x h i b i t 4, 

what i t shows us? 

A. E x h i b i t 4 i s an a d m i n i s t r a t i v e order f o r a 

nonstandard l o c a t i o n t h a t was approved i n 1975 p r i o r t o 

Exxon's commencing the d r i l l i n g of the Laguna Grande Number 

1 w e l l . 

Q. This w e l l , then, was i t d r i l l e d i n 1975 or 1976? 

A. I t was d r i l l e d i n 1975. 

Q. A l l r i g h t . And so i t has been around f o r q u i t e 

some time; i s t h a t correct? 

A. Yes, s i r , j u s t about — almost 24 years. 

Q. Exxon was the o r i g i n a l operator of t h a t w e l l ; i s 

t h a t c o r r e c t ? 

STEVEN T. BRENNER, CCR 
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A. That i s c o r r e c t . 

Q. You have prepared a c h r o n o l o g i c a l w e l l h i s t o r y , 

have you not, and presented t h a t i n E x h i b i t 5? 

A. Yes, s i r . 

Q. Would you go over the h i g h l i g h t s of the 

ch r o n o l o g i c a l w e l l h i s t o r y of t h i s w e l l f o r the Examiner? 

A. O r i g i n a l l y , Exxon applied f o r a nonstandard 

l o c a t i o n t o d r i l l a Morrow w e l l i n the east h a l f , east 

h a l f , of Section 28, Township 23 South, Range 29 East. 

This order, which i s E x h i b i t 4, was approved by Joe Ramey 

of the OCD on September 22nd, 1975. 

Subsequently, a f t e r approval, the w e l l was 

spudded on 11-13-75. They d r i l l e d the w e l l , they had 

several d r i l l stem t e s t s . Of p a r t i c u l a r i n t e r e s t were the 

ones i n the Wolfcamp, Strawn and Morrow, which a l l y i e l d e d 

hydrocarbons t o the surface and good pressures. 

A f t e r d r i l l i n g the w e l l they s t a r t e d completion 

work. I t was o r i g i n a l l y p e r f o r a t e d i n the lower Morrow, 

which they deemed noncommercial and squeezed i t o f f . They 

came up t o the Morrow from 13,107 t o 13,258, a c i d i z e d and 

f r a c ' d the w e l l , and they p o t e n t i a l e d i t on 3-27 of 1976 

w i t h an AOF of 4.1 m i l l i o n per day. 

The w e l l was shut i n f o r approximately a year 

u n t i l an El Paso l i n e was t i e d i n , and a t t h a t p o i n t the 

w e l l was put on l i n e . They produced i t f o r f o u r months and 

STEVEN T. BRENNER, CCR 
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s o l d , plus or minus, a l i t t l e over 100,000 MCF out of t h a t 

lower Morrow. And based on the a c t u a l d e c l i n e i n r a t e s 

t h a t i t was producing, i t appears t h a t there could very 

w e l l be something mechanically wrong w i t h i t , i n d i c a t i n g 

t h a t sharp of a de c l i n e . 

The w e l l was then plugged back from the Morrow t o 

the Strawn, and i t t e s t e d 1.7 m i l l i o n cubic f e e t per day on 

a t e s t dated 5-22-79. And then there's — i n the f i l e 

t here's a disconnect n o t i c e from El Paso on March 2 3rd of 

1980, and the w e l l was t e m p o r a r i l y abandoned. 

Exxon then proposed an a p p l i c a t i o n t o complete 

the w e l l i n the Wolfcamp from 11,182 t o 11,364, dated 11-10 

of 1981, and never d i d f o l l o w through w i t h t h e i r completion 

attempt i n the Wolfcamp. They came up t o the Bone Springs 

and made a very weak w e l l , produced four b a r r e l s of o i l , 

e i g h t b a r r e l s of water and 71 MCF. 

And then they sold the w e l l and — They proposed 

t o plug and abandon the w e l l , then they sol d t h a t acreage 

t o Eastland O i l Company on September 24th of 1986. 

Eastland went out and held the acreage by 

oc c a s i o n a l l y f l o w - t e s t i n g the w e l l out of the Bone Springs, 

and then they also submitted a proposal t o plug and abandon 

the w e l l . 

And at t h a t time B e t t i s , Boyle and S t o v a l l took 

over the w e l l on 6-1 of 1994. And then the u n i t 
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des i g n a t i o n changed and was dissolved on 9-94, and the name 

changed from the Laguna Grande Federal U n i t Number 1 t o 

j u s t the Laguna Grande Federal Number 1. 

B e t t i s , Boyle and S t o v a l l attempted a Delaware 

completion i n 9 of 1994, and then they also proposed a 

P-and-A procedure on 3 of 1995. At t h a t time, one of my 

other c l i e n t s i n a company which I had i n t e r e s t i n , Paloma 

Resources, purchased the w e l l i n the 160 of the east h a l f , 

east h a l f , of Section 28, and s t a r t e d attempting 

n e g o t i a t i o n w i t h Exxon f o r a farmout on a d d i t i o n a l acreage 

r e q u i r e d f o r the p r o r a t i o n u n i t . 

And then s h o r t l y a f t e r t h a t , Exxon made a term 

assignment w i t h Penwell, and t h a t term assignment c a r r i e d 

over t o Concho, and we attempted — had f u r t h e r attempts t o 

gain the acreage f o r the p r o r a t i o n u n i t . 

And then on January 1st of t h i s year, P r a i r i e Sun 

purchased a l l the p r o p e r t i e s of Paloma Resources and 

s t a r t e d n e g o t i a t i o n f o r the a d d i t i o n a l acreage once again. 

Q. A l l r i g h t , Mr. Lee, w e ' l l come back t o some of 

the e f f o r t s t o acquire farmouts on t h i s acreage, but l e t ' s 

f i n i s h the engineering aspects w i t h t h i s w e l l . 

Would you t u r n , then, t o -- Well, t h e r e was one 

c o r r e c t i o n . I f you w i l l look on number 3 of your 

c h r o n o l o g i c a l h i s t o r y , you show " D r i l l out on 11/26/76." 

Should t h a t not be "75", 1975? 

STEVEN T. BRENNER, CCR 
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A. Yes, t h a t ' s c o r r e c t , t h a t ' s a t y p o g r a p h i c a l 

e r r o r . 

Q. Okay, a l l r i g h t . Let's t u r n t o your E x h i b i t 6, 

and i f y o u ' l l discuss what — or describe what E x h i b i t 6 i s 

f o r the record and discuss i t s s i g n i f i c a n c e ? 

A. E x h i b i t 6 i s a c u r r e n t wellbore c o n f i g u r a t i o n of 

the Laguna Grande Federal Number 1 wellbore. I t shows the 

v a r ious spots i n which the w e l l has been p e r f o r a t e d , and 

then the c a s t - i r o n plugs and t h i n g s where i t had been 

plugged back. I t also shows the casing and casing program 

t h a t was run. 

There i s a c a s t - i r o n plug i n s i d e the 7-5/8 casing 

above the top of the l i n e r , as w e l l as some plugs and 

a d d i t i o n a l — and p e r f s i n the Bone Springs and Delaware 

t h a t w i l l have t o be squeezed o f f and d r i l l e d out p r i o r t o 

going i n t o the 5-inch l i n e r t o ensure some i n t e g r i t y due t o 

the pressures t h a t are expected t o be encountered i n the — 

once we get down i n t o the Pennsylvanian and Wolfcamp area. 

Q. Now, Mr. Lee, have you prepared an a u t h o r i t y 

f o r — an AFE f o r the work t h a t P r a i r i e Sun proposes t o 

perform on t h i s w e l l i n an e f f o r t t o b r i n g p r o d u c t i o n on 

t h i s east h a l f of Section 28? 

A. Yes, I have. 

Q. And i s t h a t E x h i b i t 7? 

A. E x h i b i t 7 i s the AFE t h a t I prepared and 
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circulated for the workover to establish production either 

from the Morrow or Pennsylvanian or Wolfcamp formations. 

Q. How many a c t u a l — The Morrow i s the primary 

o b j e c t i v e , i s i t not? 

A. Yes, i t i s . 

Q. What other secondary o b j e c t i v e s do you b e l i e v e 

t h a t are po s s i b l e on a 320-acre basis? 

A. Well, there are Atoka, Strawn and Wolfcamp 

formations. The Strawn and the Wolfcamp have both been 

t e s t e d also and y i e l d e d hydrocarbons i n commercial 

q u a n t i t i e s a t the surface during f l o w t e s t s t h a t — and 

e s p e c i a l l y the Wolfcamp had never been put on l i n e and 

produced. 

Q. Okay. With respect t o t h i s procedure t h a t you're 

proposing, would you e x p l a i n what you plan on doing and why 

you t h i n k you have a reasonable p o s s i b i l i t y of b r i n g i n g 

t h i s w e l l i n t o a productive status? 

A. To s t a r t o f f w i t h i n the Morrow, the w e l l came on 

w i t h h igh producing r a t e s . A f t e r f r a c t u r i n g the Morrow 

w e l l s , as the f r a c technology has evolved and there's been 

more work i n the Morrow, i t ' s become standard engineering 

p r a c t i c e t o t r y not t o produce the w e l l s a t very high r a t e s 

a f t e r f r a c s because of the carry-back of the sand i n the 

wel l b o r e , which then plugs up the wellbore, and the w e l l s 

w i l l r a p i d l y d e c l i n e t o the p o i n t they w i l l b r i d g e o f f and 
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become nonproductive a t a l l . 

I t ' s my f e e l i n g t h a t i f we go back i n t h i s w e l l 

and go back t o the Morrow t h a t was t e s t e d a t 4.1 m i l l i o n a 

day, t h a t we can probably encounter a large amount of sand 

i n the wellbore. 

And also i t might be noted t h a t t h i s w e l l was 

producing i n t o E l Paso's l i n e , and at t h a t time i t was 

running anywhere from 900 t o 1100 p . s . i . l i n e pressure 

d u r i n g these years. The w e l l was not — A l l the records do 

not i n d i c a t e t h a t i t ever had any s o r t of compression 

i n s t a l l e d t o help i t produce. 

And also now, a l l the l i n e pressures i n the area 

are h a l f of what they were o r i g i n a l l y . And i n a d d i t i o n , 

there's a low-pressure gas l i n e t h a t crosses the corner of 

t h i s l o c a t i o n t h a t ' s c u r r e n t l y operated, and i t i s c a r r y i n g 

gas from the w e l l i n Section 29 out of the Atoka, which has 

cum'd over 1.5 B so f a r . 

Q. The dryhole cost of the procedure proposed i s 

$206,000. Do you believe t h a t t h a t i s a reasonable cost 

f o r the procedures t h a t you have outli n e d ? 

A. Yes, I do. 

Q. The producing cost would be $3 74,150. Do you 

be l i e v e t h a t i s a reasonable cost? 

A. Yes, I do. 

Q. This AFE was o r i g i n a l l y prepared back i n March of 

STEVEN T. BRENNER, CCR 
(505) 989-9317 



1 

2 

3 

4 

5 

6 

7 

8 

9 

10 

11 

12 

13 

14 

15 

16 

17 

18 

19 

20 

21 

22 

23 

24 

25 

18 

this year. Do you believe these numbers are still valid 
f o r work t o be performed today? 

A. Yes, they are. 

Q. The next e x h i b i t t h a t you have prepared, E x h i b i t 

8, i s a Model Form Operating Agreement, i s i t not? 

A. Yes, t h i s i s an AAPL Form 610, Model From J o i n t 

Operating Agreement, where — showing P r a i r i e Sun as 

operator of the area. 

Q. Are you prepared t o render an opi n i o n w i t h 

respect t o the penalty r i s k assessment t h a t ought t o be or 

t h a t P r a i r i e Sun i s requesting t o be given by the 

Commission i n i t s order? 

A. Yes, I am. 

Q. And what i s tha t ? 

A. Two hundred percent. 

Q. I n the JOA, then, t h a t would equate t o the 3 00 

percent t h a t i s standard? 

A. Yes, i t would be the cost and then the a d d i t i o n a l 

2 00 percent. 

Q. Would you r e l a t e t o the Examiner your reasons why 

you're asking f o r the 200-percent r a t e from the Commission? 

A. Due t o the f a c t t h a t there are a number of plugs 

t o be d r i l l e d out, and e s p e c i a l l y due t o the f a c t t h a t 

there's a c a s t - i r o n bridge plug set i n the bottom p a r t of 

the 7 5/8 above the 5-inch l i n e r , i n my experience i n r e -
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e n t e r i n g a large number of w e l l s , sometimes th e r e can be 

considerable expense in c u r r e d i n g e t t i n g these plugs out 

from on top of a l i n e r . Once you cut them loose, t h e y ' l l 

go down and s i t on top of a l i n e r and j u s t s i t and s p i n , 

and sometimes i t ' s q u i t e a lengthy and expensive process t o 

remove those. 

Also, due t o the time f a c t o r t h a t the w e l l has 

been s i t t i n g s h u t - i n and not producing, q u i t e o f t e n t h a t 

also i s not good f o r the casing. You could also i n c u r 

f u r t h e r mechanical problems. 

Q. With respect t o vo l u n t a r y u n i t created f o r these 

kinds of procedures, i s t h i s a normal or standard 

c o n t r a c t u a l - r a t e r i s k assessment of 300 percent, or the 200 

— 100 plus 200? 

A. Yes, t h a t i s c o r r e c t . 

Q. You are also recommending t o the D i v i s i o n 

Examiner overhead r a t e f o r both d r i l l i n g and producing, are 

you not? 

A. Yes, I am. 

Q. And they're the ones t h a t are contained i n the 

JOA? 

A. Yes, they are contained i n the COPAS accounting 

procedure attached t o the JOA. 

Q. What are those rates? 

A. D r i l l i n g w e l l r a t e of $5000 per month and a 
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producing w e l l r a t e of $500 per month. 

Q. Mr. Lee, i n your experience i s t h a t the t y p i c a l 

r a t e f o r w e l l s of t h i s nature and depth i n the p a r t i c u l a r 

area t h a t we are concerned with? 

A. Yes, i t i s . 

Q. A l l r i g h t . Let's now t u r n more t o the nature of 

the completion process t h a t you're hoping t o accomplish by 

t u r n i n g t o your E x h i b i t Number 9. 

And i f you would describe f o r the record what 

E x h i b i t Number 9 i s , and then discuss the s i g n i f i c a n t 

p o i n t s of t h i s e x h i b i t . 

A. E x h i b i t Number 9 i s a s t r a t i g r a p h i c c r o s s - s e c t i o n 

prepared t o show the w e l l s t h a t were d r i l l e d by Exxon i n 

Sections 27, 28 and 29 of the o r i g i n a l e x p l o r a t o r y u n i t . 

As i s evidenced on the cros s - s e c t i o n t h e r e , there 

i s a Morrow s e c t i o n t h a t was p e r f o r a t e d and produced from 

13,086 t o -297 — I mean, 13,107 t o -258. I t had a d r i l l 

stem t e s t on there t h a t had gas t o surface, i t had a 

good — a 1.2 m i l l i o n producing r a t e and pressures i n 

excess of 5800 pounds. This zone i s the one t h a t was 

o r i g i n a l l y completed and put on l i n e and produced the 

100,000 o r so MCF, 197,727 MCF. 

This also shows the Strawn formation, which cum'd 

10,2 60 MCF i n a couple of months on l i n e . 

Also, the cross-section shows the various 
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Wolfcamp, Atoka formations. I t might be noted t h a t the 

w e l l i n Section 29 has cum'd over 1.4 BCF out of the Atoka. 

We have a t h i n n e r zone i n our — i n the Laguna Grande 

Number 1, however i t does c o r r e l a t e and i s pinched out 

f u r t h e r t o the east i n Section 27. 

The cross-section also has the DST r e s u l t s of the 

Wolfcamp and the Strawn t h a t were conducted on the wellbore 

i n question. 

Q. Mr. Lee, based upon your experience i n the f i e l d 

of petroleum engineering, do you be l i e v e t h a t the r e - e n t r y 

p r o j e c t proposed by P r a i r i e Sun presents a reasonable 

o p p o r t u n i t y t o o b t a i n production of hydrocarbons of gas 

from the subject well? 

A. I c e r t a i n l y do. 

Q. And w e l l w i t h i n the normal realm of r i s k t h a t 

operators take i n t h i s p a r t i c u l a r area? 

A. That's c o r r e c t . We have hydrocarbons t h a t were 

t e s t e d f l o w i n g a t commercial rates t o surface, we've got 

good pressures, and I see no reason why there should not be 

commercial hydrocarbons i n t h i s w e l l . 

Q. A l l r i g h t . Now, l e t ' s t u r n t o your e f f o r t s t o 

t r y t o o b t a i n j o i n d e r f o r t h i s p a r t i c u l a r p r o j e c t . 

From your — You have had considerable experience 

over a long p e r i o d of time i n t r y i n g t o o b t a i n the r e - e n t r y 

of t h i s w e l l , have you not, Mr. Lee? 
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A. Yes, f o r a number of years, i n f a c t . 

Q. A l l r i g h t . Back as e a r l y as September of 1995, 

when Paloma Resources f i r s t acquired t h i s east h a l f of the 

east h a l f of Section 28, i n q u i r i e s were made of Exxon t o 

ob t a i n a farmout f o r t h i s p r o j e c t , were they not? 

A. They were. I n f a c t , Paloma Resources purchased 

t h i s acreage on my recommendation t o secure the wellbore 

and then seek the other 160 acres necessary f o r a p r o r a t i o n 

u n i t t o develop a gas w e l l on t h i s prospect. And a t t h a t 

time they s t a r t e d — they, through me, s t a r t e d n e g o t i a t i o n s 

w i t h Exxon f o r a farmout i n the area. 

Q. I n 1995, d i d Exxon have any desires or express 

any desires t o you of farming out? 

A. I n 1995, they d i d not want t o farm out. They had 

discussed — They had some discussion of a term assignment 

f o r two years i n the hundred-dollar-an-acre w i t h an 80-

percent net revenue. We s t a r t e d n e g o t i a t i o n s on t h a t , and 

then I was n o t i f i e d two days a f t e r we s t a r t e d t a l k i n g t h a t 

the r i g h t hand d i d n ' t know what the l e f t hand was doing, 

and they had already made an agreement, term assignment, 

w i t h Penwell, covering t h a t acreage. 

Q. Did you attempt t o t r y t o o b t a i n a farmout of 

t h i s — Well, f i r s t of a l l , the term assignment t o Penwell, 

i t i n v o l v e d more than j u s t the west h a l f of the east h a l f 

of Section 28, d i d i t not? 
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A. That i s c o r r e c t . What Exxon was wanting t o do 

was, they were shopping the e n t i r e 1760 acres t h a t they had 

i n t h e r e , and Penwell — 

Q. Was t h a t under t h a t one lease t h a t we've already 

looked at? 

A. That's c o r r e c t . 

Q. A l l r i g h t . I'm sorry t o i n t e r r u p t you. 

A. They made t h e i r term assignment t o Penwell a t 

t h a t time f o r , I believe i t was $200 an acre, f o r the 1760 

acres. 

Q. Did Penwell subsequently assign i t s i n t e r e s t out? 

A. Penwell was acquired by Concho Resources, and 

then the term assignment followed from Penwell t o Concho. 

Q. Did you attempt t o farm out from both Penwell and 

Concho? 

A. I d i d on several occasions, and — w i t h Penwell 

and also w i t h Concho. 

Q. Did you determine the e x p i r a t i o n date t h a t was of 

record on t h a t term assignment? 

A. I t r i e d telephoning Concho and Exxon both t o seek 

the s t a t u s of the acreage i n the west h a l f of the east h a l f 

of Section 28. I never got any response, so we had the 

a b s t r a c t o r p u l l the case f i l e i n t h a t area, and we found a 

recorded term assignment from Exxon t o Penwell and then t o 

Concho t h a t was going t o — t h a t was e x p i r i n g i n November 
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Of 1998. 

Q. A l l r i g h t . A f t e r t h a t p o i n t , d i d you again begin 

e f f o r t s t o farm out t h i s acreage from Exxon? 

A. Yes. I t r i e d numerous times. I don't know how 

many times I c a l l e d the Midland o f f i c e , and I would -- My 

l a s t correspondence was w i t h a Mr. Randy Lewicki w i t h 

Exxon, and I was advised t h a t he was handling a l l of the 

land matters i n southeastern New Mexico. 

I l e f t numerous voice mail messages on h i s voice 

m a i l , and when I never received any response when I would 

c a l l back t o the Midland o f f i c e , I ' d say, I s t h e r e someone 

else I should t a l k t o , or how do I get i n touch w i t h 

someone? And they would always forward me t o some voice 

m a i l t o leave a message, and I never received any c a l l s 

back or any w r i t t e n correspondence t o answer any of my 

l e t t e r s . 

Q. Did you then attempt t o w r i t e Exxon concerning 

t h i s acreage e a r l i e r i n t h i s year? 

A. Yes. I n f a c t , on March the 3rd of 1998 [ s i c ] , I 

once again sent a l e t t e r t o Mr. Lewicki, requesting a 

farmout or t h e i r agreement t o j o i n i n t h i s e a s t - h a l f w e l l , 

the Laguna Grande Number 1, and I sent t h i s l e t t e r t o him 

and t o l d him t h a t I , you know, r e a l l y would l i k e f o r them 

t o e i t h e r j o i n w i t h me or confirm farmout or something so I 

would not have t o go t o the actions of f o r c e p o o l i n g t o 
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p r o t e c t my r i g h t s i n the east h a l f , east h a l f of t h a t 

s e c t i o n , which i s going t o be i n jeopardy i f p r o d u c t i o n i s 

not e s t a b l i s h e d . 

And I t o l d them i f they would l i k e , send t h e i r 

signed AFE back w i t h a check i n the amount of $103,000 f o r 

t h e i r share of the dryhole cost or a farmout l e t t e r , and we 

would then go i n f o r the — c i r c u l a t e a j o i n t o p e r a t i n g 

agreement. 

Q. E x h i b i t Number 10 i s a copy of the March 3rd, and 

t h a t was 1999, was i t not, e a r l i e r t h i s year? 

A. Yes, s i r , t h a t was e a r l i e r t h i s year, March 3rd, 

1999. 

Q. Okay, and t h a t E x h i b i t 10 i s the a c t u a l l e t t e r 

t h a t you sent addressed t o Mr. Lewicki, i n c l u d i n g a 

d e s c r i p t i o n of the workover procedure and the AFE which we 

have p r e v i o u s l y discussed? 

A. That's c o r r e c t . 

Q. Did you ever — Did you receive t h i s l e t t e r back, 

retu r n e d as undelivered, or any response by Exxon t o i t ? 

A. I never received any response, and I never 

received anything returned back i n the m a i l as 

u n d e l i v e r a b l e . 

Q. A l l r i g h t . Did you then attempt a t a subsequent 

time t o w r i t e Exxon? 

A. Yes, I d i d , and on the term assignment t h a t Exxon 
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executed t o Penwell and then t o Concho i n the l a t e s t 

correspondence, a l l the th i n g s t h a t were f i l e d of record 

a l l showed the Box 1600 i n Midland, Texas. And so once 

again, on A p r i l the 20th, E x h i b i t 11, i s another l e t t e r 

t h a t I sent on A p r i l the 20th, once again, and I t o l d them, 

you know, I s t i l l have not received any correspondence or 

phone c a l l s , and never received any phone c a l l s — 

Q. Okay, w i t h respect t o E x h i b i t 11, again, you 

received no responses; i s t h a t correct? 

A. No response. 

Q. And the l e t t e r t h a t you mailed out was not 

ret u r n e d as undelivered or anything such? 

A. Right. I n the A p r i l 2 0th l e t t e r I d i d put i n 

the r e t h a t a copy of t h i s l e t t e r was being forwarded t o the 

Houston o f f i c e since I have not been able t o get any 

correspondence from anyone out of the Midland Exxon o f f i c e . 

Q. E x h i b i t 12, then, would be a copy of the l e t t e r 

t h a t you sent t o Exxon i n Houston, Texas? 

A. Yes, t h a t ' s c o r r e c t , E x h i b i t 12 i s a l e t t e r dated 

A p r i l 20th als o , t o Exxon i n Houston, Texas. And I d i d n ' t 

know who t o get ahold of there, so I j u s t put a t t e n t i o n t o 

the land manager and b a s i c a l l y sent them a copy of 

ev e r y t h i n g t h a t I had been sending t o Midland. 

Q. Would t h a t have been a copy of the e a r l i e r l e t t e r 

wherein you requested a farmout and sent the workover 
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procedure and AFE? 

A. That's c o r r e c t . 

Q. Did you receive t h i s l e t t e r back? 

A. No, I never received anything back. 

Q. No c a l l s or correspondence i n response t o i t ? 

A. Nothing. 

Q. Now, i f y o u ' l l t u r n t o what i s E x h i b i t 13, t h i s 

i s the c e r t i f i c a t e of m a i l i n g t h a t was prepared by my 

o f f i c e s i g n i f y i n g compliance w i t h Rule 1207; i s t h a t 

c o r r e c t ? 

A. That's c o r r e c t . 

Q. On E x h i b i t A there i s a l i s t of i n d i v i d u a l s or 

companies t o which the n o t i c e l e t t e r of the f i l i n g of the 

f o r c e - p o o l i n g a p p l i c a t i o n was made; i s t h a t c o r r e c t ? 

A. That i s c o r r e c t . 

Q. A l l r i g h t . Let's go down through t h a t l i s t of 

i n d i v i d u a l s and i d e n t i f y them f o r the Examiner as t o the 

k i n d of i n t e r e s t s t h a t they a c t u a l l y own. 

Mr. Roy D. C o l l i n s , what k i n d of i n t e r e s t d i d he 

own and why d i d you send n o t i c e t o him? 

A. Mr. C o l l i n s has an o v e r r i d i n g r o y a l t y on the east 

h a l f , east h a l f of Section 28. 

Q. That i s the acreage t h a t --

A. — t h a t P r a i r i e Sun owns. 

Q. A l l r i g h t . Who i s Mr. Rick Roberts? 
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A. He also owns an o v e r r i d i n g r o y a l t y i n t e r e s t i n 

the east h a l f , east h a l f t h a t P r a i r i e Sun owns. 

Q. A l l r i g h t . You have here t h a t you sent n o t i c e t o 

Concho Resources; i s t h a t correct? 

A. Yes, we also — At t h i s time we sent, through 

c e r t i f i e d m a i l a l s o , t o Concho Resources and Exxon i n 

Midland, once again. And t h i s time we d i d r e c e i v e back as 

und e l i v e r a b l e from Exxon. 

Q. A l l r i g h t . F i r s t of a l l w i t h Concho Resources, 

d i d you receive communication back from Concho Resources 

a f t e r you sent them the n o t i c e l e t t e r ? 

A. That's c o r r e c t . According t o the term 

assignments t h a t we had found, as I s t a t e d p r e v i o u s l y , the 

term assignment, I b e l i e v e , was due t o e x p i r e , and we d i d 

not know i f an extension had been granted or not, so a t 

t h i s p o i n t we went ahead and sent everything t o Concho, as 

w e l l as Exxon, and received a l e t t e r back from Concho 

s t a t i n g t h a t they no longer — t h a t the term assignment had 

expired and they no longer owned any i n t e r e s t i n t h a t 

remaining acreage. 

Q. A l l r i g h t . Now, the f i r s t — We've got Exxon 

l i s t e d t w i c e here. This i s t o show the two addresses t o 

which n o t i c e was sent; i s t h a t correct? 

A. That i s c o r r e c t . 

Q. I n the packet of l e t t e r s , t here i s a copy of the 
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l e t t e r sent t o P.O. Box 1600 and the r e t u r n envelope, i s 

the r e not? 

A. That i s c o r r e c t . 

Q. And then there i s the d e l i v e r e d l e t t e r t o Exxon 

at the 28 Kerry Road; i s t h a t correct? 

A. That i s c o r r e c t . 

Q. Now, you also sent n o t i c e t o the Bureau of Land 

Management; i s t h a t correct? 

A. Yes, I sent n o t i c e t o the BLM i n Roswell. 

Q. They are the mineral owner under the e n t i r e 

Section 28, are they not? 

A. Yes, they are. 

Q. Have you had verbal conversations also w i t h the 

BLM, and i s there any problem w i t h respect t o the p r o j e c t 

t h a t you're proposing? 

A. I've had contact, verbal communication, w i t h the 

BLM, and a l l they t o l d me t h a t a l l they need — r e q u i r e d , 

was a communitization agreement a f t e r p r o d u c t i o n had been 

es t a b l i s h e d . 

Q. A l l r i g h t . Now, a f t e r these n o t i c e l e t t e r s were 

sent out, Mr. Lee, d i d you have occasion t o t a l k t o a 

r e p r e s e n t a t i v e of Exxon Corporation? 

A. Yes, I d i d . A f t e r the — I t ' s dated J u l y 3 0th on 

your s t a t i o n e r y . That l e t t e r was sent t o Exxon. And then 

I received a telephone c a l l from Bob Mathew of Exxon i n 
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Houston. 

Q. Did — I n Houston, i s t h a t c o r r e c t ? 

A. That's c o r r e c t . 

Q. Did he t e l l you what — or i d e n t i f y h imself and 

give you h i s t i t l e ? 

A. Yes, he i n d i c a t e d t h a t he was Bob Mathew w i t h 

Exxon Company and t h a t he had received our n o t i c e of f o r c e -

pool a c t i o n , and he i n d i c a t e d t o me t h a t they d i d not want 

t o p a r t i c i p a t e or farm out but would be i n t e r e s t e d i n a 

term assignment on t h a t acreage of $275 per acre w i t h a 75-

percent net revenue. 

Q. What acreage were they o f f e r i n g a term assignment 

on? Was i t the 160 acres sought t o be force-pooled or some 

other — 

A. He sai d t h a t they were a c t i v e l y shopping the 

e n t i r e 1760 acres and t h a t they might consider a term 

assignment on the small p o r t i o n , the 160 r e q u i r e d , the west 

h a l f of the east h a l f , under the same terms, $275 an acre 

and a 7 5-percent net revenue, but I would have t o get back 

w i t h them p r e t t y soon because i t could p o s s i b l y be s o l d t o 

someone else on the term assignment covering the whole 

lease. 

Q. Did you i n g u i r e again as t o the p o s s i b i l i t y of 

Exxon e n t e r i n g i n t o a farmout or j o i n i n g P r a i r i e Sun i n the 

a c t u a l procedure? 
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A. Mr. Mathew i n d i c a t e d they weren't i n t e r e s t e d i n 

j o i n i n g and t h a t they p r e f e r r e d not t o do the farmout. 

Q. A l l r i g h t . E x h i b i t 14, what i s t h a t ? 

A. E x h i b i t 14 i s a l e t t e r t h a t I composed a f t e r I 

had t a l k e d t o Mr. Mathew, thanking him f o r h i s time on the 

phone t o discuss t h i s , and our d e s i r e t o farm out or have 

Exxon p a r t i c i p a t e d , and st a t e d t h a t h i s terms of $275 an 

acre w i t h a 75-percent net revenue was not acceptable, and 

t h a t we were going t o continue on w i t h our f o r c e - p o o l i n g 

A p p l i c a t i o n ? 

Q. I s t h a t s t i l l a p o s i t i o n of P r a i r i e Sun, t h a t 

purchasing the acreage f o r the p r i c e l i s t e d , whether i t be 

160 or the e n t i r e 1760 acres, i s t h a t unacceptable t o 

P r a i r i e Sun? 

A. Yes, i t i s . 

Q. E x h i b i t 15 — You can go look a t E x h i b i t 15 and 

16. What are these two e x h i b i t s ? 

A. These are waivers t h a t we sent t o the o v e r r i d i n g 

r o y a l t y i n t e r e s t i n the acreage t h a t i s owned by P r a i r i e 

Sun of the east h a l f — east h a l f of Section 28. 

Q. This i s Mr. Roberts and Mr. C o l l i n s , they were 

the o v e r r i d i n g r o y a l t y i n t e r e s t owners, and they waived any 

o b j e c t i o n t o an order f o r c e - p o o l i n g t h i s acreage; i s t h a t 

c o r r e c t ? 

A. That i s c o r r e c t . 
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Q. I n your opinion, Mr. Lee, has P r a i r i e Sun made a 

g o o d - f a i t h e f f o r t t o t r y t o ob t a i n the j o i n d e r or a farmout 

of Exxon, the only other i n t e r e s t owner i n v o l v e d i n t h i s 

f o r c e - p o o l i n g a c t i o n , i n the p r o j e c t as proposed? 

A. I f e e l P r a i r i e Sun has done a l o t towards t r y i n g 

t o get p a r t i c i p a t i o n i n t h i s , e s p e c i a l l y when you look a t 

the o v e r a l l p i c t u r e . There has been, through P r a i r i e Sun, 

through my e f f o r t s w i t h P r a i r i e Sun and Paloma Resources 

and then Concho and Penwell p r e v i o u s l y under t h e i r term 

assignment, t o do something w i t h t h a t acreage necessary t o 

comprise a p r o r a t i o n u n i t . 

We're t a l k i n g about a period of f o u r t o f o u r and 

a h a l f years t h a t I've been attempting t o t r y t o get 

something going t o re-enter t h i s w e l l and e s t a b l i s h 

commercial production. 

Q. The l a t time Exxon proposed any work on t h i s was 

i n 1982 when they proposed t o attempt a Delaware 

completion, which they apparently abandoned and d i d not 

t r y ; i s t h a t correct? 

A. That i s c o r r e c t . 

Q. So apparently between 1982 and the present date, 

Exxon has done nothing on i t s own t o t r y t o attempt a 

workover procedure or t r y t o b r i n g t h i s acreage i n t o a 

pr o d u c t i v e status? 

A. That's c o r r e c t . For the l a s t — From the time 
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they s t a r t e d t h a t w e l l i n 1975, the f i r s t w e l l , the Laguna 

Grande Number 1, from 1982 t i l l now i s 16 years t h a t Exxon 

has not attempted t o t r y t o do anything t o e s t a b l i s h 

commercial production. 

Q. Mr. Lee, E x h i b i t s 1 through 16, were they 

prepared by you or under your d i r e c t i o n ? 

A. Yes, they were. 

MR. ERNEST CARROLL: Mr. Examiner, I would move 

the admission of E x h i b i t s 1 through 16 a t t h i s time. 

EXAMINER ASHLEY: E x h i b i t s 1 through 16 w i l l be 

admitted i n t o evidence. 

MR. ERNEST CARROLL: I would pass the witness a t 

t h i s time. 

EXAMINER ASHLEY: Mr. Bruce? 

CROSS-EXAMINATION 

BY MR. BRUCE: 

Q. Mr. Lee, looking a t your E x h i b i t 1, a couple of 

c l a r i f i c a t i o n p o i n t s . You've r e f e r r e d t o a couple of 

u n i t s , you r e f e r r e d t o the Laguna Grande u n i t , but t h i s one 

— This i s a Midland Map Company map, i s i t not? 

A. Yes, i t i s . 

Q. I t r e f e r s t o the Laguna Salado South U n i t . I s 

t h a t the u n i t t h a t terminated a few years ago, or i s i t the 

Laguna Grande u n i t ? 

A. I t was the Laguna Grande u n i t . 
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Q. I s the Laguna Salado South u n i t s t i l l i n e f f e c t ? 

A. I'm not sure. I believe the Laguna Salado i s a 

Santa Fe Energy u n i t . I believe i t ' s operated by Santa Fe 

Energy. 

Q. Uh-huh. The reason I'm asking, i s any of the 

acreage i n Section 28 committed t o t h a t u n i t ? 

A. None of the acreage i n Section 28 i s committed t o 

the Laguna Salado South u n i t , t h a t I'm aware o f . 

Q. Then moving on t o your E x h i b i t 6, j u s t a question 

of i n t e r e s t . At what approximate depth i s the top of the 

Wolfcamp formation? 

A. Approximate top of the Wolfcamp i s — I've got i t 

i n my notes, I can give you the exact top i f you want i t . 

Q. Sure. The reason I'm asking i s simply, anything 

below t h a t would be spaced on 32 0, I b e l i e v e ; i s t h a t 

c o r r e c t ? 

A. Also the Wolfcamp i n t h a t area below 10,000 f e e t , 

according t o the r u l e s of the OCD, was also r e q u i r i n g 320 

acres. 

Q. That's what I mean, below the top of the 

Wolfcamp. 

A. Yes, t h a t ' s c o r r e c t . The tops of the Wolfcamp 

com i n a t 9950 f e e t , and i t e x i s t s through 11,886, which i s 

the top of the Strawn. 

Q. So i t ' s a p r e t t y t h i c k section? 
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A. Yes, i t i s . 

Q. Thank you. The JOA t h a t you've submitted here, 

was t h a t ever sent t o Exxon? 

A. I b e l i e v e i n my correspondence I t o l d them t h a t 

once they would agree t o sign the AFE and/or p a r t i c i p a t i o n 

agreement, then the JOA would be forwarded t o them a t t h a t 

time. 

Q. Has t h i s been signed by Mclnnes Resources 

Company? 

A. I b e l i e v e i t has since t h i s has been — since i t 

has been prepared. I believe t h i s was j u s t an e x h i b i t t h a t 

was copied t o show what was encompassed i n the a c t u a l JOA. 

Q. Okay. Now, you said w i t h respect t o — I don't 

know i f i t was Paloma or another company, you f i r s t s t a r t e d 

l o o k i n g a t t h i s property i n 1995? 

A. Yes, s i r . 

Q. But by then i t had already been given on a term 

assignment t o Penwell Energy? 

A. My f i r s t n e g o t i a t i o n s on t h i s , I was t r y i n g t o 

get a farmout on i t p r i o r t o the term assignment being 

issued t o Penwell. 

Q. Were you ever able t o make a deal w i t h Penwell or 

Concho? 

A. Penwell came back w i t h an o f f e r of $200 an acre 

and a 74-percent net revenue, which I declined. They s a i d 
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t h a t they could get — t h a t they had a u t h o r i z a t i o n from 

Exxon t o make t h a t deal i f we so desired. 

Q. Now, when you — you said you f i r s t — G e t t i n g up 

t o more recent times, you s t a r t e d c a l l i n g Exxon i n — Did 

you s t a r t c a l l i n g them at the end of l a s t year or i n 

January, 1999? 

A. I'm not r e a l c e r t a i n when the telephone c a l l s a l l 

s t a r t e d . I be l i e v e i t was towards the end of 1998, and 

then once a l l the assignments were made from Paloma i n t o 

P r a i r i e Sun, w e l l then we stepped up the e f f o r t s a t t h a t 

time. 

Q. Was i t always c a l l i n g the Midland o f f i c e ? 

A. Yes, i t was. 

Q. Now, on your E x h i b i t 13, I be l i e v e Mr. C a r r o l l 

p o i n t e d out as p a r t of E x h i b i t B t o E x h i b i t 13 there's the 

n o t i c e l e t t e r t o Exxon a t P.O. Box 1600 i n Midland, and 

t h a t was returned t o you, was i t not? 

A. When we sent out the — We sent out two, t o 

Concho — one t o Concho and one t o Exxon. And the one t o 

Exxon a t t h a t p o i n t , sent t o Box 1600, was re t u r n e d . And 

so we sent i t then t o the Kerry Road address. 

Q. Okay. And the P.O. Box 1600 one, i t ' s k i n d of 

faded but i t says, I bel i e v e , u n d e l i v e r a b l e as addressed, 

forwarding order expired? 

A. Yes, t h a t ' s c o r r e c t . 
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Q. Mr. Lee, I've handed you what's been marked Exxon 

E x h i b i t 1, but i t ' s a c t u a l l y a response t o the Motion t o 

Dismiss t h a t I f i l e d on behalf of Exxon, oh, a week or t e n 

days ago, and I ' d l i k e t o go down a few t h i n g s w i t h you. 

S t a r t i n g i n paragraph 3, i t says — Did you help 

Mr. C a r r o l l prepare t h i s response? 

A. Yes. 

Q. I t says, s t a r t i n g i n paragraph 3 a t the bottom of 

page 1, you began c a l l i n g Exxon o f f i c e s i n Midland. What 

phone number d i d you c a l l ? 

A. I don't have t h a t here. I've got i t somewhere i n 

my notes. I t ' s the one t h a t ' s published i n the phone book 

and i n the Burmas O i l f i e l d D i r e c t o r y and i n d i r e c t o r y 

assistance. 

Q. And you attempted t o contact Randy Le w i c k i , 

c o r r e c t ? 

A. That's c o r r e c t . 

Q. And you were given Mr. Lewicki's voice m a i l 

d u r i n g several c a l l s i n 1999? 

A. I don't believe a t t h a t time i t was Mr. Lewicki. 

Usually what I would get i s s t a f f , whoever answered the 

phone, and I would ask f o r Mr. Lewicki or whoever i s 

handling the Permian Basin land area, and they would send 

me t o some voice m a i l and I would leave a message and leave 

my name and address and phone numbers and t e l l i n g what I 
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was c a l l i n g about. 

Q. Well, when you got the voice m a i l , whose voice 

m a i l was i t ? 

A. I'm not sure. 

Q. Moving on down, on page — I guess i t would be 

page 2, paragraph 5, you sent c e r t a i n l e t t e r s which are 

attached t o t h i s response. They're also i n your e x h i b i t 

packet. And you said each time you c a l l e d the Exxon land 

department i n Midland; i s t h a t correct? 

A. Yes, I would c a l l the number t h a t I had and I ' d 

ask f o r the land department or someone the r e t h a t I could 

t a l k t o about a farmout on the Permian Basin. 

Q. And you said you t a l k e d t o a secretary or 

someone. Do you — 

A. Yes. 

Q. — have any names of the people you t a l k e d to? 

A. No, I do not. I d i d n ' t w r i t e them down. 

Q. And f o r any of the voice mails, you don't have 

any names of anyone you l e f t a voice m a i l message? 

A. No. 

Q. Now, your l e t t e r s t h a t are submitted as E x h i b i t s 

A, B and C t o t h i s response are not signed by you. I s 

t h e r e any reason f o r that? 

A. Because I j u s t p r i n t e d these o f f of my computer. 

These were j u s t copies of the l e t t e r t h a t I had signed and 
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sent. 

Q. Where d i d you get Mr. Lewicki's name from? 

A. He was i n Midland. I t a l k e d t o him several times 

i n the Midland o f f i c e , s t a r t i n g way back p r i o r t o the 

Penwell deal. 

Q. And you never got any of your l e t t e r s back from 

Exxon, except the c e r t i f i e d mail which came back as 

undeliverable? 

A. The one t h a t was — I never received anything 

back u n t i l the one t h a t was sent c e r t i f i e d the l a s t p a r t of 

J u l y , I b e l i e v e i t was. 

Q. Now, the f i n a l l e t t e r you sent t o — i t was your 

E x h i b i t 14 t h a t you sent t o Mr. Mathew, says you d e c l i n e d 

the farmout, or you decline the o f f e r of Exxon f o r the west 

h a l f , east h a l f . Did you ever make a c o u n t e r - o f f e r ? 

A. No. My o f f e r was t o farm out. His i n d i c a t i o n s 

were t h a t Exxon was not i n t e r e s t e d i n j o i n i n g or farming 

out, but was i n t e r e s t e d i n term assignment of those terms 

which j u s t were not acceptable. 

Q. What were your farmout terms? 

A. For the west h a l f of the east h a l f , and an 80-

percent net revenue lease covering t h a t west h a l f of the 

east h a l f . 

I don't know i f we a c t u a l l y discussed a c t u a l 

terms of farmout, when he t o l d me t h a t Exxon was not r e a l l y 
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i n t e r e s t e d i n a farmout. I don't know i f we ever went t o 

great lengths on what the farmout terms would be since they 

were not i n t e r e s t e d i n farming out or j o i n i n g . 

Q. Do any of your l e t t e r s set f o r t h farmout terms? 

A. Not t h a t I'm aware of. 

MR. BRUCE: Mr. Examiner, t h a t ' s a l l I have of 

t h i s witness. 

EXAMINER ASHLEY: Mr. C a r r o l l ? 

MR. ERNEST CARROLL: Mr. Examiner, may I ask j u s t 

a couple of questions? 

EXAMINER ASHLEY: Yes. 

MR. ERNEST CARROLL: I f o r g o t one question t h a t I 

should have asked. 

REDIRECT EXAMINATION 

BY MR. ERNEST CARROLL: 

Q. I n your conversation w i t h Mr. Mathew wherein they 

discussed t h i s term assignment, d i d Mr. Mathew s t a t e or 

t e l l you what Exxon's p o s i t i o n was going t o be w i t h respect 

t o your A p p l i c a t i o n f i l e d f o r forc e pooling? 

A. He t o l d me j u s t s t r a i g h t up t h a t t h a t was — t h a t 

they were going t o oppose the a c t i o n of fo r c e p o o l i n g i n 

t h a t acreage. 

Q. A l l r i g h t . The number t h a t you c a l l e d i n Midland 

d u r i n g — through 1999, was the company name announced by 

the answering i n d i v i d u a l ? 
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A. Yes, i t was. 

Q. And what was that? 

A. Exxon. 

Q. Were you t a l k i n g t o a l i v e person or a voice mai l 

a t t h a t p o i n t i n time? 

A. I t was some lady t h a t answered the phone. 

Q. Did you i d e n t i f y the purposes of your phone c a l l ? 

A. Yes, I d i d . 

Q. And were you always d i r e c t e d t o a person which 

t h a t — the answering person represented t o be the person 

t a k i n g care of the area? 

A. The would ask what p a r t i c u l a r area t h a t I was 

i n q u i r i n g about, so they would know who t o — 

Q. And how d i d you describe the p a r t i c u l a r area? 

A. I described i t as southeast New Mexico. 

Q. A l l r i g h t . Did t h a t always s a t i s f y the 

r e c e p t i o n i s t as t o whatever the i n q u i r y — 

A. Yes, i t d i d . 

Q. Were you ever able t o t a l k t o a l i v e person, 

though, a f t e r you were passed from the r e c e p t i o n area? 

A. I never t a l k e d t o a l i v e person u n t i l Mr. Mathew 

c a l l e d and t o l d me t h a t he had received a copy of the f o r c e 

p o o l i n g a c t i o n . P r i o r t o the force p o o l i n g a c t i o n a c t u a l l y 

being f i l e d , I never was able t o t a l k t o anyone except f o r 

Mr. Lewicki back i n 1995. 
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Q. This i s a standard f e d e r a l lease. What i s the 

r o y a l t y on the lease t h a t Exxon had? 

A. One-eighth. 

Q. A one-eighth lease? 

A. Yes. 

Q. A l l r i g h t . So the o f f e r of an 8 0 percent would 

leave some room f o r an o v e r r i d i n g r o y a l t y ? 

A. That would leave a 7-1/2-percent o v e r r i d i n g 

r o y a l t y . 

Q. Have you ever had a c o u n t e r o f f e r w i t h respect t o 

a l a r g e r o v e r r i d e or anything such as that ? 

A. No. 

Q. Did Mr. Mathew o f f e r anything such as t h a t ? 

A. No. 

MR. ERNEST CARROLL: Thank you, Mr. Examiner. 

EXAMINER ASHLEY: Mr. Bruce? 

MR. BRUCE: Nothing. 

EXAMINATION 

BY EXAMINER ASHLEY: 

Q. Mr. Lee, i n the l e t t e r t h a t you wrote i n March of 

1999, you s t a r t out saying, "This l e t t e r i s t o request...a 

Farmout Agreement or P a r t i c i p a t i o n i n the above described 

lands i n Eddy County, New Mexico." Now, i n t h a t l e t t e r you 

included the AFE t h a t ' s attached; i s t h a t c o r r e c t ? 

A. That's c o r r e c t . 
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Q. And the workover procedure? 

A. Yes, I put a d e t a i l e d workover procedure as w e l l 

as the AFE. 

Q. Okay. Now, i s t h i s a l l you said about the 

farmout agreement? Was your farmout agreement ever s p e l l e d 

out f o r them? 

A. No, I was j u s t requesting a farmout, and we never 

got i n t o any terms, because I never could get anyone t o 

t a l k t o me. 

Q. Okay. Now, I wanted t o ask you some more 

questions about the geology of the area. 

A. Sure. 

Q. I s there any other production, Morrow pr o d u c t i o n , 

w i t h i n the area close t o t h i s well? 

A. There i s Morrow production t o the n o r t h i n 

Section 22, there i s also Morrow production i n Section — I 

be l i e v e i t ' s Section 32, t o the south and west. I t ' s not 

included on t h i s map. 

Q. Okay, and i f I'm understanding t h i s r i g h t , t h i s 

w e l l was o r i g i n a l l y t e s t e d i n the Morrow and completed i n 

the Morrow? 

A. I t was t e s t e d and completed i n the Morrow f o r a 

r a t e of 4.1 m i l l i o n cubic f e e t per day. 

Q. How come t h a t zone was abandoned? 

A. I'm not sure. On the production d e c l i n e s , i t 
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s t a r t e d o f f a t 43,000 MCF per month, the f o l l o w i n g month 

2 0,000, the f o l l o w i n g month 10,000, and then i t got down t o 

300 MCF f o r the next month. And so i t j u s t dropped r i g h t 

o f f , which i n d i c a t e d t o me not l i m i t e d r e s e r v o i r but 

mechanical problems. 

Q. Okay. 

A. More s p e c i f i c a l l y , more than l i k e l y , since i t was 

sand-frac'd, i t was probably f u l l of sand. 

Q. Okay. Do you know anything about the Laguna 

Salado South u n i t , when i t was formed, the h i s t o r y of i t or 

anything? 

A. No, s i r , t h a t u n i t i s operated by Santa Fe 

Energy, i s a l l t h a t I'm aware of. 

EXAMINER ASHLEY: Okay. 

MR. BRUCE: Mr. Examiner, i f I can i n t e r r u p t , 

Exxon a c t u a l l y formed t h a t u n i t , and Santa Fe Energy took 

over operations from Exxon. I bel i e v e i t was t e n years or 

e i g h t or ten years ago, something l i k e t h a t . I only know 

t h a t because I d i d the hearing f o r Exxon. 

EXAMINER ASHLEY: To form the u n i t ? 

MR. BRUCE: Yeah, I bel i e v e — 

EXAMINER ASHLEY: And i t was formed about e i g h t 

years ago? 

MR. BRUCE: Yeah, I ' l l — 

EXAMINER ASHLEY: Something l i k e t h a t ? 
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MR. BRUCE: I believe so. 

EX7AMINER ASHLEY: And when d i d Santa Fe take over 

operation? 

MR. BRUCE: I t was s h o r t l y t h e r e a f t e r . 

EXAMINER ASHLEY: Okay. 

Q. (By Examiner Ashley) When you began c o n t a c t i n g 

Exxon back a t the f i r s t of the year, were you aware t h a t 

most of t h e i r operations had been moved out of Midland? 

A. No, s i r . 

EXAMINER ASHLEY: Okay, a l l r i g h t . 

Do you have any questions? 

MR. RAND CARROLL: Yeah, I have a few questions, 

Mr. Lee. 

EXAMINATION 

BY MR. RAND CARROLL: 

Q. Your March 3rd, 1999, l e t t e r sent t o Exxon i n 

Midland, t h a t was a c e r t i f i e d l e t t e r . Did you get a 

r e c e i p t f o r t h a t , r e t u r n r e c e i p t ? 

A. On March the 3rd — I'm not sure i f the March 3rd 

l e t t e r was sent c e r t i f i e d m a i l . I don't r e c a l l . 

Q. Well, i f you look i n the second paragraph of t h a t 

l e t t e r i t says, "Please approve t h i s AFE w i t h i n 3 0 days 

from time of r e c e i p t of t h i s C e r t i f i e d L e t t e r . . . " So 

apparently i t was a c e r t i f i e d l e t t e r . 

A. I've got some more — I t h i n k I've got another 
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green card somewhere, but I don't know if this was sent 

c e r t i f i e d or not, because I can't f i n d the green card f o r 

i t . 

Q. Well, you said i n the l e t t e r i t was c e r t i f i e d . 

A. Well, I'm sure I probably sent i t c e r t i f i e d i f I 

put i t i n the l e t t e r , but I don't have the green card t o 

confirm t h a t . 

Q. You don't have i t i n your records? 

A. No, s i r . 

Q. When d i d you get the B e l l S t r e e t address i n 

Houston? You were sending correspondence t o a P.O. Box i n 

Midland, and then you sent i t t o Kerry Road i n Houston, and 

then the l a s t l e t t e r you sent i s t o an address on B e l l . 

Did you get t h a t address from Mr. Mathew? 

A. No, I got i t also out of some of the other 

o i l f i e l d d i r e c t o r i e s t h a t I could f i n d w i t h t h e i r 

addresses, since I was unable t o get any response from the 

Midland o f f i c e . I sent a copy of i t t o the land manager i n 

Houston, and on A p r i l the 2 0th, since I was not having any 

luck out of Midland, I thought, w e l l , perhaps a t t h a t time, 

w e l l then, they would a t l e a s t — i f i t was supposed t o be 

going somewhere else, they'd l e t me know where i t was 

supposed t o go. 

I sent two l e t t e r s on A p r i l 2 0th, one t o Exxon i n 

Midland, and also i n t h a t l e t t e r , the one t h a t went t o 
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Midland, I also put, "A copy of t h i s l e t t e r i s . . . " being 

"...forwarded t o your Houston o f f i c e as w e l l i n an attempt 

t o get someone t o inform me of Exxon's p o s i t i o n . " And so I 

sent i t t o the box and the B e l l address i n Houston and j u s t 

addressed i t t o the land manager a t t h a t time. 

Q. Okay, so you sent i t t o the B e l l address i n both 

A p r i l and i n August. 

What correspondence d i d I see w i t h the Kerry Road 

address? 

A. That was the corrected address a f t e r the green 

card came back as undeliverable a t the end of J u l y . I 

b e l i e v e i t ' s E x h i b i t 13. 

Q. So you got the Kerry S t r e e t as the c o r r e c t e d 

address, and s t i l l i n August of t h i s year you sent i t t o 

the B e l l address again? Your August 2 0th response t o 

Mr. — 

A. The Kerry Road address was i n Midland, and Mr. 

Mathew was i n Houston, and so my l a s t response — 

Q. Oh, I see. 

A. — on August 20th, then, went back t o the B e l l 

address, t o Mr. Mathew down there i n Houston. 

Q. Okay. There was a reference made t o a Mclnnes 

Resources Company. What's t h e i r involvement i n t h i s whole 

matter? 

A. P r a i r i e Sun sold 20 percent of working i n t e r e s t 
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i n the east h a l f , east h a l f , t o t h a t c o r p o r a t i o n . 

Q. And what d i d they sign, a JOA? 

A. They signed a JOA and an AFE t o p a r t i c i p a t e . 

Q. But t h a t signature doesn't appear on t h i s 

e x h i b i t ? 

MR. ERNEST CARROLL: Mr. C a r r o l l , we d i d not 

present t h a t . 

MR. RAND CARROLL: Okay. 

MR. ERNEST CARROLL: Since t h i s was a — They're 

not an i n t e r e s t owner t h a t we were g e t t i n g , they were 

someone t h a t we a c t u a l l y sold t h i s p r o j e c t t o , i s why we 

d i d n ' t present t h a t — 

MR. RAND CARROLL: Well, I thought we were 

r e f e r r i n g t o the JOA, and there was a question regarding 

Mclnnes Resources. 

THE WITNESS: That was because t h a t was the JOA 

f o r everybody. And p r i n c i p a l l y , the purpose was t o show 

t h a t t h a t was what the overhead r a t e was being o f f e r e d , and 

the penalty would be the same — 

MR. RAND CARROLL: Okay. 

THE WITNESS: — as we are requesting or 

recommending t o the Commission. 

Q. (By Mr. Rand C a r r o l l ) Well, Mr. Lee, d i d you 

t e s t i f y you a c t u a l l y d i d have some conversations w i t h Mr. 

Lewicki? 
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A. Yes, I did. 

Q. And t h a t was when, e a r l i e r t h i s year? 

A. That was s t a r t i n g a t the f i r s t — 

Q. F i r s t of January? 

A. I n 1995 and 1996 and 1997, i s when I was t a l k i n g 

t o Mr. Lewicki, and then the p r o j e c t k i n d of f e l l by the 

wayside when I couldn't get anything from Penwell. And 

then when Concho took over Penwell we s t a r t e d r e v i v i n g the 

p r o j e c t again, and I went back and had the a b s t r a c t o r f i n d 

the address and the term assignment so we could see who 

owned i t , whether Concho s t i l l d i d or Exxon. And since we 

d i d n ' t have any idea, we sent t h a t t o both Concho and Exxon 

again a t t h a t time. 

But I d i d not speak t o Mr. Lewicki a t t h a t time. 

Q. Okay, so p r i o r t o speaking t o Mr. Mathew i n 

August, you had no — you d i d n ' t t a l k t o anybody a t Exxon, 

besides l e a v i n g messages? 

A. Just l e f t message a f t e r message. 

Q. I n 1999? 

A. Yes, s i r . 

MR. RAND CARROLL: Okay, t h a t ' s a l l I have. 

FURTHER EXAMINATION 

BY MR. ERNEST CARROLL: 

Q. Mr. Examiner, since I haven't been up here i n a 

wh i l e I f o r g o t t o ask the a l l - i m p o r t a n t question of Mr. 
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Lee. 

I n your opinion, does the g r a n t i n g of t h i s 

A p p l i c a t i o n by the D i v i s i o n promote conservation and 

p r o t e c t c o r r e l a t i v e r i g h t s ? 

A. Yes, i t does. 

MR. ERNEST CARROLL: I'm so r r y , a f o r m a l i t y . 

I have nothing f u r t h e r . That was the only 

witness t h a t we have. 

EXAMINER ASHLEY: Okay. Mr. Bruce, do you have 

anything f u r t h e r ? 

MR. BRUCE: I don't have anything f u r t h e r w i t h 

Mr. Lee. 

EXAMINER ASHLEY: Thank you, Mr. Lee. You may be 

excused. 

M.P. BOB MATHEW. 

the witness he r e i n , a f t e r having been f i r s t d u l y sworn upon 

h i s oath, was examined and t e s t i f i e d as f o l l o w s : 

DIRECT EXAMINATION 

BY MR. BRUCE: 

Q. Could you s t a t e your name and c i t y of residence 

f o r the record? 

A. My name i s M.P. Bob Mathew, Houston, Texas. 

Q. Who do you work for? 

A. I work f o r Exxon Company, USA. 

Q. Exxon Company, USA, i s a d i v i s i o n of Exxon 
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Corporation? 

A. Corporation, t h a t ' s r i g h t . 

Q. Let's get t h i s c l e a r on the record r i g h t away. 

What i s your d i r e c t phone number? 

A. I t ' s area code (713) 431-1029. 

Q. And a t what address can you be reached i n Exxon? 

A. We have two addresses. One i s a P.O. box and 

another i s a p h y s i c a l s t r e e t address. The P.O. box i s P.O. 

Box 4697, Houston, Texas 77267. And the p h y s i c a l address 

i s 396 West Greens Road, Houston, Texas, 77067. 

Q. What i s your job t i t l e a t Exxon? 

A. I'm a senior land r e p r e s e n t a t i v e . 

Q. Does your area of r e s p o n s i b i l i t y i n c l u d e 

southeast New Mexico? 

A. Yes, i t does. 

Q. I n f a c t , are you r e a l l y the only landman handling 

southeast New Mexico? 

A. That's c o r r e c t . 

Q. How long have you been doing t h a t ? 

A. About two years. 

Q. Have you p r e v i o u s l y t e s t i f i e d before the 

D i v i s i o n ? 

A. No, I have not. 

Q. Would you please summarize your educational and 

employment background? 
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A. I received a petroleum land management degree 

from the U n i v e r s i t y of Texas i n A u s t i n , and upon graduation 

I went t o work f o r Exxon i n 1981. I worked f o r 19 1/2 

years, approximately, a t Exxon. 

Q. And are you f a m i l i a r w i t h the land matters 

i n v o l v e d i n t h i s A p p l i c a t i o n ? 

A. Yes, I am. 

MR. BRUCE: Mr. Examiner, I ' d tender Mr. Mathew 

as an expert petroleum landman. 

EXAMINER ASHLEY: Mr. Mathew i s so q u a l i f i e d . 

Q. (By Mr. Bruce) Now, Mr. Mathew, as Exxon's 

landman responsible f o r southeast New Mexico, would any 

proposal regarding the d r i l l i n g of a w e l l or a farmout or 

anything else come t o you? 

A. Generally, they do come t o me. 

Q. Now, i f somebody wanted t o get your name and 

address, how could they f i n d i t ? 

A. The most common way t h a t people who don't know 

about Exxon i n Houston would contact me would be through 

l o o k i n g a t the PBLA or Permian Basin Landman's A s s o c i a t i o n 

D i r e c t o r y . A l l of Exxon's landmen are members of t h a t 

o r g a n i z a t i o n , and t h e i r names and addresses and phone 

numbers are l i s t e d i n the Midland Land D i r e c t o r y . And we 

o f t e n come out f o r t h e i r meetings. So people i n the o i l 

and gas business i n Midland know how t o contact landmen. 
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Q. Now, Exxon's Midland o f f i c e i s closed, i s i t not? 

A. Yes, i t was closed. 

Q. How long ago was i t closed? 

A. I t was closed i n 1997, as of August 1st. 

Q. So i t ' s been closed 2 5 months now? 

A. Yes. 

Q. What about the phone number there? 

A. The phone number was kept a c t i v e f o r a few weeks, 

and I checked on t h i s before I l e f t Houston. I t was kept 

a c t i v e u n t i l the middle of September. I t had a forwarding 

number on i t . That number was (915) 688-6100. And then 

about September 15th of 1997 the number was d e - a c t i v a t e d , 

and i f you c a l l t h a t number today you get a telephone 

company message saying t h a t the number i s no longer a c t i v e . 

Q. So f o r almost two years now, i t ' s been impossible 

t o c a l l the Midland o f f i c e ? 

A. That's c o r r e c t . 

Q. Or what was the Midland o f f i c e ? 

A. That's r i g h t . 

Q. A l l of the people i n Midland who wanted t o remain 

w i t h Exxon moved t o Houston? 

A. That's c o r r e c t . 

Q. Now, regarding t h i s p a r t i c u l a r t r a c t of land, you 

v e r i f i e d t h a t there had been a term assignment t o Penwell 

a t one point? 
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A. That's correct. 

Q. When d i d ownership r e v e r t t o Exxon? 

A. I t would have reverted sometime i n March of t h i s 

year, and the reason — March of 1999. 

Q. And had — I don't know what the p r e c i s e terms or 

len g t h of the term assignment was, but was th e r e a w e l l 

d r i l l e d under there t h a t extended t h a t assignment? 

A. Yes, there was a w e l l t h a t was d r i l l e d by 

Penwell. I t was a Delaware w e l l i n Section 28, i n the west 

h a l f , and they had under the terms of t h a t term assignment 

180 days t o commence operations on a subsequent w e l l . 

There was some question as t o when e x a c t l y 

operations ceased on t h a t Penwell w e l l , which Concho took 

over, and so i t was agreed t h a t the term assignment would 

terminate around March of 1999, 180 days from the date they 

determined operations had ceased. 

Q. And on P r a i r i e Sun's E x h i b i t 1 t h a t w e l l , I 

t h i n k , would be the — I t h i n k i t ' s l i s t e d here as the 

C o c h i t i Federal Well Number 2, which i s i n the northwest of 

the southwest of Section 28. 

A. I be l i e v e t h a t ' s c o r r e c t . 

Q. So r e a l l y , Exxon r e a l l y d i d n ' t own the i n t e r e s t 

t o n e g o t i a t e w i t h u n t i l March of 1999? 

A. That i s c o r r e c t . 

Q. Now, I want t o get t o the Motion t o Dismiss i n a 
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minute here, Mr. Mathew. But in general terms, Exxon isn't 

out t h e r e t o stop people from d r i l l i n g , i s i t ? 

A. No. I n f a c t , we have an a c t i v e program t o 

promote t o i n d u s t r y a large number of acres t h a t our 

company has no plans t o d r i l l on, and i t ' s c a l l e d our 

acreage forward stewardship process. We a c t u a l l y encourage 

other companies t o come i n and t r y t o get development going 

on our own t r a c t s t h a t we have no plans f o r i n the near 

f u t u r e . And i t ' s one of — 

Q. And t h i s i s one of those t r a c t s ? 

A. Yes, t h i s happens t o be one of those t r a c t s . 

Q. Does Exxon have any o b j e c t i o n t o d e a l i n g w i t h 

j u s t 160 acres, r a t h e r than the whole lease? 

A. No. 

Q. Now, you made an o f f e r , and I don't know i f i t 

was i n w r i t i n g or over the phone, t o Mr. Lee, d i d you not? 

A. Yes, i t was over the phone. 

Q. Did you ever receive a c o u n t e r o f f e r ? 

A. No, I d i d not. 

Q. The terms t h a t you o f f e r e d , are they s i m i l a r t o 

the terms other operators have accepted on lands i n New 

Mexico? 

A. Yes. 

Q. Approximately how many deals since you became the 

landman f o r New Mexico have you consummated? 

STEVEN T. BRENNER, CCR 
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A. Consummated w e l l over 30 d i f f e r e n t deals. 

Q. Did you have only one conversation w i t h Mr. Lee? 

A. Actual conversation, one. I b e l i e v e t h e r e were 

two voice m a i l messages t h a t were traded. 

Q. Okay. During t h a t conversation d i d he ever 

mention the precise farmout terms t h a t he mentioned d u r i n g 

h i s testimony today? 

A. No. 

Q. Mr. Mathew, do you have i n f r o n t of you what I've 

marked Exxon E x h i b i t 1, the Response t o the Motion t o 

Dismiss? 

A. Yes. 

Q. Let's go down through t h i s , s t a r t i n g w i t h 

paragraph 3 where i t says t h a t P r a i r i e Sun began c a l l i n g 

Exxon o f f i c e s i n Midland. I mean, from your previous 

testimony, could you reach anybody i n Midland? 

A. You could not reach anyone i n our main Midland 

o f f i c e . That number was disconnected. Midland had a 

Sprayberry f i e l d o f f i c e , t h a t one on Kerry Road, but i t was 

a c t u a l l y outside Midland. 

Q. What about reaching Mr. Lewicki there? 

A. Randy Lewicki l e f t Exxon's employment on — I 

b e l i e v e i t was J u l y 1st of 1997. 

Q. So when the Exxon Midland o f f i c e closed and 

everybody moved t o Houston, Mr. Lewicki e l e c t e d t o stay i n 
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Midland? 

A. Yes, he elected t o go t o work f o r P h i l l i p s . 

Q. I t h i n k he's s t i l l a landman f o r P h i l l i p s . 

A. I b e l i e v e t h a t ' s c o r r e c t . 

Q. And because of t h i s , there r e a l l y i s no land 

department i n Midland, and hasn't been f o r a couple of 

years? 

A. That's r i g h t . 

Q. Moving on down t h i s , there are two paragraphs 

numbered paragraph 3, but on the second paragraph 3, 

obviously since Mr. Lewicki hasn't been th e r e f o r two 

years, he couldn't r e t u r n any phone c a l l s , could he? 

A. That's r i g h t . 

Q. Now, attached t o t h i s and submitted as the main 

e x h i b i t package are three l e t t e r s , E x h i b i t s A, B and C t o 

the Response. Before t h i s response was d e l i v e r e d t o us, 

had you ever seen any of these three l e t t e r s ? 

A. No, I have not. 

Q. And the ones t h a t went t o P.O. Box 1600 

apparently — I mean, obviously the c e r t i f i e d m a i l had been 

retur n e d t o Mr. Lee? 

A. I don't know. Yeah. 

Q. So you never saw those l e t t e r s . Now, the one 

t h a t goes t o Houston, P.O. Box 2180, t h a t i s a general 

Exxon P.O. box? 
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A. Yeah, t h a t ' s the P.O. box t h a t Exxon company 

used. I t s headquarters, or a l l the headquarters groups, 

are housed. 

Q. That's not the land department? 

A. No. 

Q. This l e t t e r never made i t t o you? 

A. I t d i d not. 

Q. And anything coming regarding New Mexico should 

come t o you? 

A. That's r i g h t . 

Q. And wi t h o u t belaboring the p o i n t , I mean, the 

comments regarding c a l l i n g Midland, again, t h e r e was no 

phone number i n Midland t h a t anybody could be reached a t , 

other than the Sprayberry f i e l d o f f i c e ? 

A. That's r i g h t . 

Q. They would not handle New Mexico p r o p e r t i e s ? 

A. No. 

Q. Mr. Mathew, I've handed you what's been marked as 

E x h i b i t 2. I s t h a t simply a paragraph-by-paragraph 

r e b u t t a l , prepared w i t h your assistance, regarding the 

P r a i r i e Sun response t o Motion t o Dismiss? 

A. Yes. 

Q. And i t p r e t t y much summarizes what you — i n 

paper form, what you've j u s t t e s t i f i e d to? 

A. That's c o r r e c t . 
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Q. I'm handing you what's been marked Exxon E x h i b i t 

3, Mr. Mathew. Could you j u s t b r i e f l y describe what t h a t 

i s f o r the Examiner? 

A. I j u s t kept a chronology of my conversations or 

i n t e r a c t i o n s w i t h P r a i r i e Sun regarding t h i s matter, and — 

Q. And b a s i c a l l y what — i f I can summarize, what 

you've seen i s an e a r l y August l e t t e r t h a t got t o you, the 

l e t t e r t h a t went t o the Sprayberry f i e l d o f f i c e ? 

A. That's r i g h t . 

Q. And then you had a phone conversation w i t h Mr. 

Lee? 

A. Just one phone conversation, on August the 17th. 

Q. And you put f o r t h Exxon's terms, proposed terms 

f o r a term assignment? 

A. That's r i g h t . 

Q. And you have never received a c o u n t e r o f f e r from 

them? 

A. No, not v e r b a l l y , not i n w r i t i n g . 

Q. Mr. Mathew, were Exxon E x h i b i t s 2 and 3 prepared 

by you or under your d i r e c t i o n ? 

A. Yes, they were prepared by me. 

Q. And i n your opinion, should t h i s A p p l i c a t i o n be 

dismissed so t h a t the p a r t i e s can negotiate f u r t h e r 

regarding a farmout or term assignment? 

A. That's what we f e e l . 
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MR. BRUCE: Mr. Examiner, I would move the 

admission of Exxon's E x h i b i t s 1 through 3. 

EXAMINER ASHLEY: E x h i b i t s 1 through 3 w i l l be 

admitted a t t h i s time. 

MR. BRUCE: And I pass the witness. 

EXAMINER ASHLEY: Mr. C a r r o l l ? 

CROS S-EXAMINATION 

BY MR. ERNEST CARROLL: 

Q. Mr. Mathew, Exxon i s a very lar g e c o r p o r a t i o n , i s 

i t not? 

A. Yes, i t i s . 

Q. The address t h a t was used by Mr. Lee f o r Houston, 

P.O. Box 2180, or 800 B e l l , are those v a l i d addresses f o r 

some p a r t of Exxon, Inc.? 

A. Yes. 

Q. Now, you're not t e l l i n g the Examiner t h a t t here 

i s not an Exxon o f f i c e i n Midland, Texas, t h a t answers the 

telephone "Exxon"? 

A. I bel i e v e there's the Sprayberry f i e l d o f f i c e 

t h a t answers. 

Q. A l l r i g h t . Do you have any knowledge or personal 

knowledge, whether or not those people i n t h a t Sprayberry 

o f f i c e know t h a t the land department has moved from Midland 

t o Houston? 

A. The Sprayberry f i e l d o f f i c e i s not i n my area of 
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j u r i s d i c t i o n , so I don't get i n t e r a c t i v e i n t h a t o f f i c e . 

New Mexico i s handled out of our Seminole f i e l d o f f i c e . 

Q. A l l r i g h t . So i f someone c a l l s t h a t o f f i c e , they 

should know t h a t the land department f o r Exxon e x i s t s i n 

Houston, and they would probably know the c o r r e c t telephone 

number or address, wouldn't they? 

A. I wouldn't know the answer t o t h a t . 

Q. You wouldn't know the answer. The Sprayberry 

o f f i c e i n Midland should know t h a t the production matters 

f o r New Mexico are handled i n the — What d i d you say, 

Seminole o f f i c e ? 

A. Yeah, but each f i e l d o f f i c e handles t h e i r 

d i s t i n c t f i e l d s , and they don't worry about the other f i e l d 

o f f i c e s . 

Q. Does t h a t go t o the p o i n t t h a t they w i l l not t e l l 

someone who c a l l s and i n q u i r e s about, I want t o t a l k t o 

someone about acreage, i s i t p o l i c y of Exxon not t o gi v e 

them the proper i n f o r m a t i o n or t o t e l l them where t o go t o 

f i n d out what they're asking? 

A. I wouldn't know about those a l l e g a t i o n s . 

Q. You wouldn't know. Okay. 

There are l i v e human beings, though, i n the 

Sprayberry o f f i c e i n Midland, are there not — 

A. I would t h i n k so. 

Q. — t o your knowledge? 
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And let's — you talk ~ You have mentioned that 
Exxon has an a c t i v e program t o t r y t o deal w i t h the acreage 

t h a t i t holds, and apparently there i s q u i t e a l o t of 

acreage held by Exxon i n southeastern New Mexico, i s there 

not? 

A. What do you mean by " q u i t e a l o t " ? 

Q. S i g n i f i c a n t , i t takes how much of your time t o 

deal w i t h southeastern New Mexico? 

A. How many acres are you t a l k i n g about? 

Q. Well, yeah, how many acres does Exxon have? Do 

you have an idea? 

A. About 100,000. 

Q. Hundred thousand acres. That's a s i g n i f i c a n t 

amount of acreage, i s i t not? 

A. Uh-huh. 

Q. I n your conversation w i t h Mr. Lee, you d i d inform 

him t h a t Exxon was not i n t e r e s t e d i n farming out or 

d r i l l i n g or j o i n i n g i n t h i s proposal; i s t h a t c o r r e c t ? 

A. No, i t ' s not. I n f a c t , Mr. Lee has 

misrepresented t h a t i n h i s response f i l e d through the 

Commission. 

The exact conversation t h a t I had w i t h Mr. Lee i s 

l i s t e d on the chronology there. I advised Mr. Lee t h a t i t 

was our preference t o t r y t o trade a l l of these 1700 acres, 

because we had t h i s program i n place, and we had some 
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p a r t i e s t h a t we were t a l k i n g t o about t a k i n g the e n t i r e 

t r a c t , t h a t we would not stand i n h i s way of j u s t doing the 

160 i f he came back t o us w i t h what we wanted, which was an 

18-month term assignment f o r the bonus of $275 an acre w i t h 

us d e l i v e r i n g a $75 NRI. 

And we d i d not hear back. Mr. Lee sa i d t h a t he 

would t a l k t o h i s f o l k s and get back t o me, and he never 

c a l l e d back. 

Q. Well, i s n ' t i t t r u e , though, Mr. Lee brought up 

i n t h a t conversation t h a t he wanted Exxon t o e i t h e r j o i n or 

farm out? I s t h a t not true? 

A. No. 

Q. So t h a t was never p a r t of the conversation? 

A. No, he said i n an e a r l i e r l e t t e r t h a t he would 

l i k e a farmout, but there were no terms, and I was g i v i n g 

him the terms f o r the deal — 

Q. Did you ask — Okay, excuse me, I d i d n ' t mean t o 

i n t e r r u p t . 

Okay, so you were g i v i n g him the terms of the 

deal t h a t Exxon would accept? 

A. That's r i g h t . 

Q. And they d i d not include farming out or j o i n i n g , 

d i d they? 

A. I bel i e v e I t o l d him t h a t we would p r e f e r not t o 

j o i n t the w e l l . 
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Q. Well, what does " p r e f e r " mean? 

A. we — 

Q. You haven't j o i n e d . 

A. — would not. 

Q. You haven't — You would j o i n ? 

A. Would not. 

Q. You would not j o i n , okay. So t h a t ' s out of the 

way. Exxon i s not going t o j o i n i n t h i s p r o j e c t , no matter 

what? 

A. That's r i g h t . 

Q. Okay. Farming out. What are the terms t h a t 

Exxon would farm out under? 

A. We g e n e r a l l y don't do farmouts. We do what we 

c a l l term assignments. 

Q. Uh-huh. 

A. That's been the p r a c t i c e i n the 3 0-plus deals 

t h a t we've had i n New Mexico. And f o r a l l essence — I t ' s 

j u s t a matter of semantics. We j u s t c a l l a farmout a term 

assignment. 

Q. I see. So f r a n k l y , r i g h t now, as of t h i s date, 

Exxon has on the t a b l e everything t h a t i t w i l l do w i t h 

respect t o making a trade on t h i s acreage. 

A. This i s our i n i t i a l terms. I f Mr. Lee wants t o 

propose a counter, w e ' l l c e r t a i n l y look a t i t . 

Q. You already know he wants you t o e i t h e r j o i n or 
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farm out. That's r e j e c t e d . So the only t h i n g t h a t you're 

going t o consider i s him o f f e r i n g you a d i f f e r e n t amount of 

money f o r a term assignment; i s t h a t c o r r e c t ? 

A. What do you mean by "farmout"? 

Q. Farmout i s where you assign the acreage 

a l l o w i n g — based on a net-revenue i n t e r e s t , and al l o w him 

t o d r i l l a w e l l . 

A. He d i d n ' t give me any s p e c i f i c s on the farmout. 

Q. But t h a t ' s not what Exxon w i l l do a deal on, i s 

i t ? 

A. We g e n e r a l l y don't do i t , but we do do deals t h a t 

are s t r a i g h t farmouts too, when the s i t u a t i o n n e c e s s i t a tes. 

Q. What i s Exxon's o b j e c t i o n t o t h i s acreage being 

f o r c e pooled? 

A. We don't have an o b j e c t i o n t o Mr. Lee or h i s 

company d r i l l i n g the w e l l on i t , we j u s t want a neg o t i a t e d 

d e a l , t h a t ' s a l l . 

Q. A deal only on your terms; i s t h a t c o r r e c t ? 

A. No, the terms are subject t o n e g o t i a t i o n . He has 

not made any c o u n t e r o f f e r . 

Q. What again i s the answer t o my question? What i s 

your o b j e c t i o n t o t h i s acreage being force-pooled? 

A. We would l i k e f o r P r a i r i e Sun t o attempt t o 

ne g o t i a t e w i t h Exxon before f o r c e p o o l i n g us. 

Q. And the only area of n e g o t i a t i o n would be a p r i c e 
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as t o a term assignment; i s t h a t c o r r e c t ? 

A. Price and net revenue i n t e r e s t . 

Q. Price and net revenue i n t e r e s t . But i t would be 

a term assignment; i s t h a t correct? 

A. That's g e n e r a l l y the way we would do i t . 

Q. You say you want more time t o n e g o t i a t e . How 

much time i s necessary t o negotiate? 

A. I f we can reach agreement, we can do i t i n a few 

days. 

Q. As t o a farmout agreement wherein you j u s t assign 

the acreage t o allow the w e l l or the workover procedure — 

because t h i s w e l l i s already i n existence, i t doesn't have 

t o be d r i l l e d — as t o a farmout agreement where Exxon 

would allow P r a i r i e Sun t o complete the w e l l , and i f i t 

gets a w e l l t h a t i s capable of commercial p r o d u c t i o n and 

then earn an assignment w i t h an 80-percent net revenue, i s 

Exxon's p o s i t i o n t h a t t h a t i s an unacceptable o f f e r ? 

A. Because we're not g e t t i n g the value f o r t h a t 

acreage t h a t we f e e l should be — 

Q. That you should be given t o i t . You have been 

shopping t h i s acreage since e a r l y 1982; i s t h a t c o r r e c t ? 

That was the l a s t time Exxon d i d any work, and then t h e r e 

i s — The chronology t h a t Mr. Lee presented, t h e r e have 

been a number of assignments t o various people. 

A. I pe r s o n a l l y have not been shopping the acreage 
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u n t i l — i n recent months. 

Q. A l l r i g h t . But Exxon — This acreage has been 

a v a i l a b l e f o r sale and has had a number of t a k e r s since 

1982; i s t h a t correct? 

A. I bel i e v e the Penwell deal was the r e s u l t of an 

e a r l i e r promotive e f f o r t . 

Q. Well, the chronology t h a t Mr. Lee presented w i t h 

respect t o the d i f f e r e n t assignments of people t h a t held 

t h i s acreage, you have no o b j e c t i o n w i t h the accuracy of 

t h a t , do you, Mr. Mathew? 

A. No. 

MR. ERNEST CARROLL: I pass the witness. 

EXAMINER ASHLEY: Mr. Bruce? 

REDIRECT EXAMINATION 

BY MR. BRUCE: 

Q. Just one question, Mr. Mathew. As you s a i d , when 

you're l o o k i n g a t a term assignment or a farmout, i t ' s 

r e a l l y semantics as t o the d i f f e r e n c e between the two? 

A. That's r i g h t . I t ' s j u s t , our company i n New 

Mexico p r e f e r s t o handle t h e i r farmouts v i a t h a t 

instrument. 

Q. Each reg u i r e s a w e l l t o be d r i l l e d or w e l l work 

t o be done w i t h i n a s p e c i f i c p eriod of time, or the 

i n t e r e s t lapses? 

A. That's r i g h t . 
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MR. BRUCE: That's a l l I have. 

MR. ERNEST CARROLL: With respect t o t h a t , I have 

one question. 

RECROSS-EXAMINATION 

BY MR. ERNEST CARROLL: 

Q. There i s a d i s t i n c t d i f f e r e n c e , though, Mr. 

Matthew, because a term assignment also r e q u i r e s the person 

o b t a i n i n g the term assignment t o pay cash money f o r the 

acreage; i s t h a t correct? 

A. Our farmouts also r e q u i r e cash money, by the way. 

Q. That's because the farmouts t h a t Exxon — the 

only farmouts Exxon w i l l give are term-assignment-type 

farmouts; i s t h a t correct? 

A. No, we give farmouts i n other p a r t s of the 

country f o r cash con s i d e r a t i o n , because we want t o make 

sure t h a t the people t h a t we give farmouts t o are serious 

about d r i l l i n g . 

Q. The f a c t t h a t Mr. Lee i s w i l l i n g t o spend over 

$200,000 t o perform t h i s workover i s not s u f f i c i e n t 

i n d i c a t i o n t o Exxon t h a t he intends t o do the work, then, 

i s t h a t what you're saying? 

A. No. 

Q. Okay. But you are saying Exxon wants cash p a i d 

t o i t i n order t o make a deal on t h i s acreage? 

A. We beli e v e the acreage has a value. 
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MR. ERNEST CARROLL: That's a l l I have. 

EXAMINATION 

BY EXAMINER ASHLEY: 

Q. Mr. Mathew, what was the term assignment t h a t you 

had reached w i t h Penwell? 

A. The term of that? I d i d n ' t a c t u a l l y work on t h a t 

d e a l , but t h a t was f o r a period of several years. I t 

re q u i r e d w e l l s t o be d r i l l e d and had a 180-day continuance 

development p r o v i s i o n . Penwell d r i l l e d one w e l l , which was 

t h a t C o c h i t i w e l l , and then they had 180 days t h e r e a f t e r t o 

commence another w e l l . Concho had the i n t e r e s t a t t h a t 

time, and they chose t o allow i t t o lapse. 

That would have been March of 1999. 

Q. Did t h e i r term in v o l v e any k i n d of p r i c e per acre 

and — 

A. Yes, they paid a bonus per acre. 

Q. What d i d they pay? 

A. I'm not sure since I d i d n ' t do t h a t d e a l , but i f 

I were t o j u s t guess I would say a couple of hundred 

d o l l a r s per acre. 

Q. Okay. P r i o r t o Exxon c l o s i n g the Midland o f f i c e , 

would you be involved i n any land matters t h a t happened i n 

New Mexico? 

A. I was working i n the lease maintenance 

o r g a n i z a t i o n , c a l l e d land owner r e l a t i o n s , and I had 
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contact with our various land offices. At the time, i t 

was — I n more recent years i t was New Orleans and Midland, 

and p r i o r t o t h a t Denver. 

Q. But d i d you oversee the land matters i n Midland? 

A. We d i d n ' t oversee, we had more of a review r o l e 

and support r o l e i n t h a t o r g a n i z a t i o n . 

Q. So i f Mr. Lee had contacted Mr. Lewicki p r i o r t o 

the o f f i c e c l o s i n g i n Midland, would you have known about 

t h a t ? 

A. No. I was i n the c o n t r o l l e r s o r g a n i z a t i o n t h a t 

had stewardship over lease maintenance, so we were removed 

from the f i e l d o f f i c e . 

Q. So t h a t would have — what would have happened i n 

Midland would have happened independent of anything i n the 

Houston o f f i c e ? 

A. Yes, where I was employed at the time. But i n 

1997, i n September of 1997, I moved t o the Houston land 

o r g a n i z a t i o n . So I was new t o land. I've been handling 

New Mexico ever since 1997, but p r i o r t o t h a t I was not 

in v o l v e d i n the land o r g a n i z a t i o n . 

Q. Well, then — Okay, d i d the land department i n 

Houston handle New Mexico land matters p r i o r t o the Midland 

o f f i c e closing? 

A. Oh, I see your question. No, they d i d not. They 

were handled out of Midland. 
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Q. Okay. So any k i n d of conversation would probably 

not — would have gone unnoticed i n Houston? 

A. That's r i g h t . 

EXAMINATION 

BY MR. RAND CARROLL: 

Q. Mr. Mathew, you had a conversation w i t h Mr. Lee 

on the 17th of August? 

A. Uh-huh. 

Q. From your understanding, what was h i s problem 

w i t h your o f f e r of a term assignment? Was i t the cash 

bonus or was i t the net revenue i n t e r e s t , or both? 

A. He d i d n ' t i n d i c a t e t h a t he had a problem. He 

j u s t s a i d , you know, he was going t o t a l k t o h i s f o l k s 

about my o f f e r and he would get back t o me, and he never 

d i d . 

MR. RAND CARROLL: Okay, t h a t ' s a l l I have. 

FURTHER EXAMINATION 

BY EXAMINER ASHLEY: 

Q. And what, again, was your problem w i t h h i s o f f e r ? 

A. He r e a l l y d i d n ' t have an o f f e r t o speak o f , he — 

I n w r i t i n g , I t h i n k he proposed a farmout w i t h no d i s t i n c t 

terms. I s t a t e d what our terms would be up f r o n t t o him. 

He said he would t a l k t o h i s f o l k s and get back t o me. I 

never heard back. 

EXAMINER ASHLEY: Mr. C a r r o l l , do you t h i n k i t 

STEVEN T. BRENNER, CCR 
(505) 989-9317 



1 

2 

3 

4 

5 

6 

7 

8 

9 

10 

11 

12 

13 

14 

15 

16 

17 

18 

19 

20 

21 

22 

23 

24 

25 

72 

would be possible to produce any of the return receipts for 

the l e t t e r s t h a t Mr. Lee has w r i t t e n since the f i r s t of the 

year? 

MR. ERNEST CTARROLL: That I can't answer u n t i l we 

go back through h i s f i l e s . He said he had a few green 

cards. I j u s t don't have a re p r e s e n t a t i o n t o make t o you 

as t o whether or not we would be successful i n l o c a t i n g the 

green card t h a t i s referenced i n the l e t t e r . 

I know I asked him t o look f o r some. He found 

some cards. We found a green card f o r the Concho l e t t e r i n 

March t h a t was going a t the same time. We d i d n ' t make t h a t 

an e x h i b i t , but he was t r y i n g , he was -- but i t was also 

aside. We found t h a t one. 

I don't know, he might be able t o f i n d the one — 

because these l e t t e r s were being w r i t t e n i n the March — 

There was a l e t t e r w r i t t e n t o Exxon i n March which we've 

made an e x h i b i t . We can't f i n d the green card. 

The same l e t t e r was w r i t t e n t o Concho. We found 

the green card, but then we found out Concho wasn't the 

source and we d i d n ' t make t h a t an e x h i b i t . But we j u s t 

haven't located i t t o date. I don't know i f he went back 

and he could f i n d i t , and I j u s t don't want t o make a 

re p r e s e n t a t i o n t o you one way or the other. I mean, we can 

c e r t a i n l y t r y . 

I know we found one. And t h a t i s j u s t an 
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i n d i c a t i o n t o me t h a t I t h i n k he d i d what the l e t t e r s a i d . 

I t ' s j u s t we don't have i t now. He d i d n ' t — Most of these 

cases don't get down t o whether or not there's a green card 

or not, a t l e a s t ones I've had, and Mr. Lee j u s t hasn't had 

t h a t experience, and I can t e l l you t h a t ' s what he's 

represented t o me, and we j u s t — We've looked f o r i t , and 

we haven't found i t y e t . 

And he has been out on the — I n f a c t , when he 

l e f t , he l e f t s t r a i g h t from a w e l l . He's been g u i t e busy 

i n the nature of h i s c o n s u l t i n g business when we came up 

here, so — and he's — There's j u s t been a l o t going on i n 

hi s l i f e , so... 

EXAMINER ASHLEY: Okay. You also mentioned 

e a r l i e r t h a t there was a concern about l o s i n g the lease, 

and t h e r e was some — I s there a p a r t i c u l a r deadline 

t h a t --

MR. ERNEST CARROLL: There i s no p a r t i c u l a r — 

There i s not a set deadline as of y e t , but t h a t doesn't 

mean we're not going t o get one. 

The lease — what happened, because — these 

f e d e r a l e x p l o r a t o r y u n i t s — Commercial produ c t i o n f o r the 

extension of an ex p l o r a t o r y u n i t t h a t had a l o t of acreage 

i s a higher standard, but commercial production f o r a 

producing w e l l which w i l l keep a p a r t i c u l a r lease a l i v e i s 

a lower standard. 
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The proponents of — The supporters of the 

e x p l o r a t o r y u n i t , the l a r g e r e x p l o r a t i o n u n i t , d i d not, 

according t o the feds, get the s u f f i c i e n t amount of 

commercial production i n order t o hold the vast amount of 

acreage. 

Then, as Mr. Lee o u t l i n e d f o r you, the w e l l was 

put on production, both gas, and there was some Delaware 

and t h e r e was some t e s t i n g . So there's been a pr o d u c t i v e 

h i s t o r y over — since 1975 or 1976, when the w e l l f i r s t 

produced. 

The BLM has been s a t i s f i e d , but q u i t e f r a n k l y 

we're s e t t i n g on the edge of our c h a i r s wondering when t h a t 

n o t i c e — and we are — That's why we had t o f i l e the f o r c e 

p o o l i n g A p p l i c a t i o n , because we are i n fea r of t h a t , and i f 

t h a t happens i t w i l l be a short-term n o t i c e , put i t on 

pro d u c t i v e s t a t u s . 

But the w e l l i s i n t h a t — as f a r as the feds are 

concerned, i t does enjoy t e m p o r a r i l y abandoned s t a t u s , i t 

has had production, the lease has been held — and t h a t ' s 

j u s t a 160-acre lease — has been held up t o the present 

time. But i t does stand i n r i s k of l o s i n g because there's 

no production r i g h t now. 

EXAMINER ASHLEY: We're going t o take a f i v e -

minute recess. We'll come back a t 10:30. 

(Thereupon, a recess was taken a t 10:25 a.m.) 
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(The following proceedings had at 10:30 a.m.) 

EX/AMINER ASHLEY: Mr. Bruce, have you made a 

motion i n t h i s case? 

MR. BRUCE: Yeah, I would l i k e t o make a b r i e f 

statement, and I ' l l do i t i n the a l t e r n a t i v e . 

Mr. Examiner, you know, I ' d l i k e t o s t a r t o f f by 

saying t h a t Exxon would l i k e t o see something get done out 

here. Mr. Lee i s doing a good t h i n g , t r y i n g t o b r i n g the 

w e l l back on l i n e . I f he can do t h a t , more power t o him. 

But r e a l l y , Exxon j u s t simply believes t h a t the 

p a r t i e s should be held t o the standards r e q u i r e d by the 

s t a t u t e and D i v i s i o n p o l i c y and t h a t we should have some 

a d d i t i o n a l time t o negotiate. I t h i n k t h a t would c l e a r up 

the problems. And i f they can't come t o terms, P r a i r i e Sun 

could come back and force-pool them. 

But, you know, Mr. Mathew t e s t i f i e d he d i d n ' t see 

any of these l e t t e r s . The f i r s t time they got the l e t t e r s 

was, I t h i n k , a Jul y 3 0th — or maybe an August, e a r l y 

August l e t t e r t h a t went t o t h a t Sprayberry f i e l d o f f i c e , 

t h a t got forwarded t o Houston. And t h a t ' s when I got 

c a l l e d by Mr. Mathew and h i s compatriots about t h i s case. 

I would renew the Motion t o Dismiss or make i t , 

i n the a l t e r n a t i v e , a continuance of t h i s hearing t o allow 

the p a r t i e s j u s t more time t o neg o t i a t e . I don't t h i n k 

t h e r e has been s u f f i c i e n t time, and I don't t h i n k t h e r e 
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have been s u f f i c i e n t n e g o t i a t i o n s . And w i t h a few weeks' 

e x t r a time, maybe they can come t o terms on t h i s . 

I don't t h i n k — I recognize t h e i r f e a r of a time 

delay or time deadline by the BLM, but I b e l i e v e under 

f e d e r a l r e g u l a t i o n s u s u a l l y there's a l e t t e r issued and a 

company i s given an X period of time t o b r i n g a w e l l back 

on production on a lease before i t ' s expired. So I don't 

t h i n k the BLM could c a l l them up tomorrow and say, Hey, 

your lease i s dead. There would be some time element 

i n v o l v e d , or they wouldn't be allowed t o b r i n g the w e l l 

back i n t o production. 

So having said t h a t , you know, Exxon doesn't 

o b j e c t t o being f o r c e pooled, they merely want P r a i r i e Sun 

t o comply w i t h the s t a t u t e s . And we t h i n k a few more weeks 

of n e g o t i a t i n g would s e t t l e t h a t . 

EXAMINER ASHLEY: Okay. Mr. C a r r o l l ? 

MR. ERNEST CARROLL: Mr. Examiner, there's two 

p a r t s . 

With respect t o j u s t an o u t r i g h t d i s m i s s a l , we 

c e r t a i n l y oppose t h a t . We bel i e v e we have t r i e d t o do 

something w i t h Exxon, and Exxon over the many years has 

es t a b l i s h e d a p o l i c y . 

The issue here i s , can Exxon forc e Mr. Lee or 

P r a i r i e Sun t o pay — not only put t h e i r money up f o r the 

opera t i o n proposed but pay them a d o l l a r sum per acres? I 
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t h i n k the testimony i s p r e t t y c l e a r c u t , t h a t ' s a l l Exxon 

wants, and P r a i r i e sun i s not w i l l i n g t o put up an 

a d d i t i o n a l amount of money on top of the money they are 

going t o r i s k i n the operation. I t h i n k the testimony has 

i n d i c a t e d t h a t . 

And I t h i n k compliance w i t h the s t a t u t e has been 

met, based on the testimony presented here today. There 

has been a meeting of these p a r t i e s , there has been an 

es t a b l i s h e d time period of what Exxon's p o s i t i o n i s , and 

there's testimony w i t h respect t o P r a i r i e Sun. So I don't 

t h i n k a dis m i s s a l i s proper. 

However, I t h i n k t h i s Examiner has a hearing date 

sometime i n September. My c l i e n t , though he does not 

be l i e v e there i s going t o be much room f o r success because 

we know the p o s i t i o n s — and he has expressed t h a t i n h i s 

testimony, and I t h i n k Mr. Mathew has p r e t t y w e l l expressed 

the p o s i t i o n of Exxon. We have no o b j e c t i o n , though, t o 

the next hearing t h a t t h i s Examiner has i n September — and 

you c a l l e d a couple of dates, so I t h i n k t h a t you have a — 

I suggest — I f e e l l i k e you have one. You can c o r r e c t me 

i f you do not. But t o allow the p a r t i e s -- and as Mr. 

Mathew sa i d , only a few days may be necessary — t o allow 

the p a r t i e s t o a t l e a s t converse and see i f t h e r e i s any 

room f o r movement w i t h respect t o t h a t key issue, the 

payment of a d d i t i o n a l money, and then once you give us the 
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date of the hearing, t h a t — say by Monday of the week of 

the hearing date, counsel, both of us, advise you whether 

or not a deal has been made. 

And i f a deal has been made, of course, the 

hearing should be dismissed, because there's only two 

p a r t i e s . I f a deal cannot be made, then I t h i n k the case, 

based on the evidence presented here, should be taken under 

advisement and a r u l i n g handed down as t o the A p p l i c a t i o n 

seeking the forc e pooling. 

And so we — i n a sense, we're g i v i n g the 

credence or — and agreeing, then, t o one of the 

a l t e r n a t i v e s posed by Mr. Bruce on behalf of Exxon. But we 

would l i k e t o do i t t o your next hearing date and set i t up 

along the terms, and I t h i n k t h a t should be s u f f i c i e n t 

time. 

I t h i n k Mr. Mathew and Mr. Lee can, as we leave 

here, set a time of which they can converse, and once 

they've gotten and looked a t everything, t h a t they can set 

up an appointment time where they can a c t i v e l y converse and 

discuss the a l t e r n a t i v e s a v a i l a b l e t o them. 

EXAMINER ASHLEY: Okay. I'm not going t o dismiss 

the case. I w i l l continue the case t o my next docket. The 

problem i s t h a t my date — Well, I guess i t shouldn't be a 

problem. My next docket i s the 21st of October. 

MR. ERNEST CARROLL: Oh, 21st of October, okay. 
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EXAMINER ASHLEY; And I would like for both 
p a r t i e s t o contact me t h a t Monday before -- I'm not sure of 

the date, as t o what the status i s . And then w e ' l l hear 

any a d d i t i o n a l testimony on the 21st and take i t under 

advisement a t t h a t time. 

MR. ERNEST CARROLL: With respect t o the — I do 

not suspect w e ' l l have — Do you t h i n k there w i l l be the 

necessity of a d d i t i o n a l testimony w i t h respect t o the 

n e g o t i a t i o n , other than j u s t a r e p r e s e n t a t i o n by Counsel, 

yes or no? 

MR. BRUCE: Yeah, I would a n t i c i p a t e t h a t we 

wouldn't need t o b r i n g Mr. Lee back. I f anything, I 

suppose we could submit a f f i d a v i t s or j u s t — 

MR. ERNEST CARROLL: I f t h a t would — j u s t an 

a f f i d a v i t as t o what happened and whether or not there's 

any — you know, t h a t ' s a l l I ' d l i k e t o see — 

MR. BRUCE: Yeah. 

MR. ERNEST CARROLL: — j u s t t o keep the p a r t i e s 

from having — because I know Mr. Mathew had t o come up 

from Houston. That's q u i t e an expense. And Mr. Lee's 

taken away from t r y i n g t o keep h i s w e l l s producing. 

So then — 

MR. BRUCE: I don't have any o b j e c t i o n t o t h a t . 

MR. ERNEST CARROLL: To t h a t , i f t h e r e i s a 

necessity of a d d i t i o n a l — be presented i n a f f i d a v i t s or 
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j u s t based on the statement — 

EX7AMINER ASHLEY: That would be f i n e w i t h me. 

MR. RAND CARROLL: And please inform us i f you 

get a n o t i c e from the BLM. 

EXAMINER ASHLEY: Yes. 

MR. ERNEST CARROLL: I f we do, we w i l l g ive 

you — give me a c a l l . 

MR. BRUCE: Yeah, t e l l us of t h a t . I f you do, 

please t e l l us. 

MR. ERNEST CARROLL: Yeah, I ' l l immediately 

n o t i f y you, Bruce. 

EXAMINER ASHLEY: And l e t me know too. 

MR. ERNEST CARROLL: I c e r t a i n l y w i l l . 

EXAMINER ASHLEY: Okay. 

MR. ERNEST CARROLL: Send you a copy of the 

l e t t e r . 

EXAMINER ASHLEY: Okay, thank you. 

MR. ERNEST CARROLL: Thank you. 

(Thereupon, these proceedings were concluded a t 

11:35 a.m.) 

* * * 
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